Grand Isle Supervisory Union

CIUUSD Regular Meeting
School Board Regular Meeting
Tuesday, May 14, 2019, at 6:30 p.m.
Location: North Hero Education & Community Center

Agenda
Call to Order
1. Call to Order (G. Marckres) : 6:30 p.m.
2. Adjust the Agenda (G. Marckres) 6:31 p.m.
3. Citizens and/or Staff to be Heard 6:35 p.m.
4. Consent Agenda (G. Marckres) (Action) 6:40 p.m.
a. Approve the minutes from 4/9/2019
b. Extension Request
i.  Jessica Ochs
ii.  Alaria Lanpher
iii. Cori Sellers
iv. Megan Walker
V. Mandy Alarcon
5. Reports 6:50 p.m.
a. Superintendent’s
b. Financial
Board Business.
6. Move of Central Office (M. Clark){Discussion)(Possibie Action) 7:00 p.m.
a. Fire Safety Permit ($680)
b. Door Quote (L. Thomas)
c. HVAC
7. Update on school choice requests (M. Clark)(Discussion) 7:15 p.m.
8. Policy review (G. Marckres)(Action) 7:20 p.m.
9. Narcan (M. Clark)(Discussion) 8:00 p.m.
10. Union support staff contracts (M. Clark)(Action) 8:05 p.m.
11. Non-union support staff contracts (M. Clark)(Action)(Executive Session) 8:10 p.m.
12. Principal Hiring Update (M. Clark) (Discussion) 8:15 p.m.
13. Teacher Hiring Update (L. Thomas)(Discussion){Possible Action) 8:25 p.m.
14. Other
Closure
15. Setting the next agenda (Discussion) 8:35 p.m.
16. Adjourn

Note: Executive Session: If discussion warrants and the Board so votes, some items may be discussed in Executive
Session pursuant to VSA 1 §313(a)

Discussion Items - Issues the Board needs to discuss and deliberate, but upon which no action is taken at this meeting.

Action Items - Issues that require the Board to make a decision by vote, may have been discussed over several meetings prior to this point.
Consent Items - Routine matters that need no discussion by the Board, but require Board approval. They are grouped together as a single
agenda item. Background materials are provided in the Board packet to be reviewed ahead of the meeting. If there are no concerns, they are
approved with a single vote. Any member can request the Board vemove an item to be discussed and voted on separately. This fiees up time at
meetings.

Information Items [Incidental Information] - Matters the Board needs to know about, but for which no Board action is needed. The information
flow is one way, from presenter to the Board. Questions for clarification are entertained as time allows.



Grand Isle Supervisory Union

CIUUSD Regular Meeting
School Board Regular Meeting
Tuesday, April 9, 2019

Minutes

Board Present: Jane Zera, Michael Inners, Mason Maltais, Gary Marckres (phone)
Admin Present: Michael Clark, Kristal Gomez, Lauren Thomas, Joe Resteghini
Public Present: Bridget Brisson, Wade Lockerby, Vicky Peters

Call to Order
1. Call to Order

Gary Marckres called meeting at 6:37pm moved to nominate Mason Maltais as chair. All in favor.
Motion passes.

2. Adjust the Agenda

Contracts to be moved to 16-17 to be signed after meeting during executive session.

3. Citizens and/or Staff to be Heard

Wade Lockery Isle La Motte - indicated that interdistrict school choice would benefit his family
tremendously. Lockery has 3 children one goes to Pre-K in North Hero entering Pre-K next yr 9 yr
old homeschool. Per Lockery he believes that interchoice schools would be easier for his family
and would help manage his life to have all children in North Hero school and he wouidn't see a
con as it would be easier to have school choice.

Michael inners- reads email from Nicholas and Lindsey Standhop they believe that there should
be no argument as to what school they should attend as it is one district.

Mason Maltais- Sean Sesera from North Hero emails that all students should have a choice of
school and he supports the choice.

4. Consent Agenda

[ ]
o]

Approve the minutes from 3/12/2019
Mason Maltais- approves meeting minutes.

5. Reports :

[ ]
o

Superintendent’s

Michael Clark- Equalize pupils and SDS data continues to be challenging. DC04 needed to be in
couple weeks ago and he a meeting with Secretary French regarding the financial situation that
was shared with board members regarding the audit and reporting.

Residency Verification process has been approved in Alburgh and Grand Isle. Board Members
will approve residency based on judgment.

Integrated Field Review will happen Wednesday April 17, 2019.

Financial
Approve business deposit account

Rob Gess not here but put in packet to be approved as an action item. Sets all banking with
Peoples United. Checking and Savings. Form to authorize. Mason Maltais makes a motion and
authorized to sign CIUUSD to set up business account. Kristal Gomez notarizes.Gary
Marckres,Mason Maltais, Michael Inners, Jane Zera. Motion passes 4-0.



Board Business.
6. Afterschool Programming Update

Lauren Thomas included what was given as a survey on what the students would be interested
their next step and process will be a 6 week mini camp. Staff will see if they will continue to offer
an activity and have a supervisor to watch the students until 3:30pm or if there is an emergency,
someone will be supervising. As the year goes on Lauren Thomas believes that it would be great
to offer CIUUSD.

7. World Language Update

Joe Resteghini- Isle La Motte, Grand Isle, and North Hero were sent a survey and they received
feedback that French would be the initial language to have them study. The positive is that other
schools offer French as well and will get the students the exposure that they will need in order of
proximity. Based on recommendations Joe Resteghini believes that they should hire a French
Teacher for the FY19. Mason Maltais agrees, Michael Inners agrees as well as the location
Mason Maltais says to move forward as it has been approved in the budget. French teachers will
be interviewed to what style of French they would offer.

8. Second reading of Intradistrict Choice Policy

Michael Clark - second meeting on topic.

Mason Maltais reads the policy of Choice Grades Prek-6 warned Feb 12, 2019.

Jane Zera asked if it was reviewed by the AOE.

Vickey Peters is here to support the policy.

Michael Clark’s timeline is to approve this tonight but it can be change.

Gary Marckres opens discussion to the board. Jane Zera has no issue but doesn't want to
approve a policy that might not be correct.

Michael Inners believes it makes sense as long as parents understand that it is not guaranteed it
is a policy that has a process and applications.

Gary Marckres,Mason Maltais, Michael Inners, Jane Zera Motion passes 4-0

7:07pm approve

9. Policy Work

Michael Clark 7/1 policy class size travel reimbursement remaining policies VSBA did not indicate
revision. Urges to stick to the policies as it is vetted in other districts and it can be built into
procedure.

Michael Clark- B3 suggests to A1 would be the only change fo the conflict of interest. Board
believes that it is made all standard. Long standing policy is available to read. Gary Marckres and
Mason Maltais conquer.

Gary Marckres suggests that policy is available to look at as well as online.

Substitute Policy
Board recognizes Policy B1

Volunteer Students Policy B2- Should not always say GISU. Michael Clark will change to
members of school district board acknowledges.

Alcohol and Drug Free Workplace
B3



Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act
Michael Clark- B6
Board acknowledges B6

Student Alcohol and Drugs

Michael Clark-C2

Gary Inners- prescription use is not included. Michael Clark states that this did not require any
alteration by the AOE. Mason Maltais acknowledges to the next board meeting C2.

Transportation Policy
Michael Clark- C3
Board acknowledges Mason Mailtais.

Class Size Policy

Gary Inners and Mason Maltais want standard class size.

CIUUSD nor GISU does not provide.

Gary Inners wants Tech Education to be taken out.

Clark wants fo leave in if it was ever created by other schools even if it doesn't apply at the
moment.

Class size 2000 needs to be changed - G14 code by Michaei Clark change heading and
fanguage that the VSBA recommended.

Travel Reimbursement Policy

Michael Clark states that there is a practice of reimbursements by keeping receipts.
Gary Inners states that the IRS rate should be accounted for.

Board Acknowledges F1 change to the next meeting.

10. HVAC update

Michael Clark had a company come in last Thursday and will get quote tomorrow from Green Mountain
Air in hopes to have the quote less than 15K M. Clark is trying to get more bids.

Mason Maltais- nervous of timeline

M. Clark- The timeline is all in order the HVAC is the biggest priority but will have it all completed by the
July timeline.

11. Building Use

M. Clark- Jane Zera in Isle La Motte wanted to make sure that we continue with the practices in Isle La
Motte for building usage.

Jane Zera- Includes ali 3 schools.

M. Clark- Reads policy of Community Use of School Facility. Committee funds differently.

Lauren Thomas- Explains process of what happens when they open up the school to different functions
but the school tends to provide the cost as they have to hire out a ie- custodian to pay for the school
opening/and or function clean up.

Jane Zera- wants the community to still have access to the Isle La Motte school as that has always been
something that the committee uses.

M. Inners- believes that if it is a profit base they should pay for the use of the school instead of the school
budget.

M. Mason- is in favor to keeping the local boards the same as what it has always been used in the past as
a local portion of the community.



M. Clark- Grand Isle pays extra costs on maintenance in order to open.
Al members want to be on record that they wants the schools to be a community center.

12. Moderator
Ben Joseph was the written choice in the motion Gary Marckres,Mason Maltais, Michael Inners, Jane
Zera Motion passes 4-0.

13. Teacher contracts and RIF Notices

M. Clark- CIUUSD new contracts out by Thursday 4/18 any teacher not being employed are being sent
RIF notices all teachers in North Hero, Grand Isle, and Isle La Motte wili receive RIF notices at the same
time they will be handed a contract for CIUUSD except for one exemption that has been resigned. M.
Clark plans to start handing RIFs and contracts. Joe Resteghini and Lauren Thomas will be able to
handie the contacts and notices. All contracts will be signed by Mason Maltais in motion of Gary
Marckres, Mason Maltais, Michael Inners, Jane Zera motion passes 4-0.

Mason Maltais will sign after meeting.

- 14. Calendar

M. Clark- All board members were sent a colored calendar agreed to 180 students days align to other
schools except conferences 3/13 parent teacher days and received a waiver to be approved 188 staff
days.

Parent teacher conference post report card Joe Restigini is in communication with students and parents
and sends a survey in hand as well as report cards to have a conversation starter. Goal is to get 100%
parents involved. Sign up sheet are given and the goal is to have the parent invoived as the staff tries to
work with parents schedules. Short answer is yes they accommodate the parents to show up to
conferences.

Motion to approve Gary Marckres,Mason Maltais, Michael Inners, Jane Zera motion passes 4-0.

15. Other
N/A

Closure
16. Setting the next agenda

Another round of policies
HVAC

Move of central office
Principal advisory committee

Motion to discuss contract Gary Marckres,Mason Maltais, Michael Inners, Jane Zera motion passes 4-0.
Executive Session 7:45pm

8:03 pm meeting resumes

Gary Marckres,Mason Maltais, Michael Inners, Jane Zera- motions

17. Adjourn 8:04pm Gary Marckres,Mason Maltais, Michael Inners, Jane Zera- motions



5/8/2019 Grand Isle Supervisory Union Mail - Fwd: contract extension

gy Loule

Megan Devinny <mdevinny@gisu.org>

Fwd: contract extension
1 message

Michael Clark <mclark@gisu.org> Wed, May 8, 2019 at 9:30 AM
To: Megan Devinny <mdevinny@gisu.org>

---------- Forwarded message ---------

From: Jessica Ochs <jochs@gisu.org>

Date: Wed, May 8, 2019 at 9:13 AM

Subject: contract extension

To: Lauren Thomas <Ithomas@gisu.org>, Michael Clark <mclark@gisu.org>, Michael Inners <minners@board.gisu.org>,
Gary Marckres <gmarckres@board.gisu.org>, Nathan Robinson <nrobinson@board.gisu.org>, Don Bartlett
<dbartlett@board.gisu.org>

Cc: Dorothy Sacca <dsacca@gisu.org>

Dear Board Members,

I am formally requesting an extension on signing my 2019-2020 contract.
If possible, | would like the deadline to be the first week of June.
Please let me know if you have any questions.

Thank-you,

Jessica Ochs

Michael J. Clark

Grand Isle Supervisory Union
Superintendent

(802) 372-6921

CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION. THIS MESSAGE MAY NOT BE FORWARDED.

The information contained in this communication, including

any attachments, is confidential,constitutes privileged

communication, and is intended only for the use of the addressee.

This message may not be forwarded without prior consent from

the sender. The information in this e-mail is also protected

by the rights afforded under Family Educational Rights and

Privacy Act (FERPA) and school district policies. Any unauthorized
use, forwarding, distribution,disclosure, printing or copying is
strictly prohibited and may be unlawful. If you have received this
communication in error, please notify us immediately at (802) 372-6921

or return e-mail,and delete any copies of this message immediately.
Any inadvertent disclosure of this communication shall not compromise
the confidential nature of the communication.

hitps://mail.google.com/maillu/0?ik=a2d051aa83&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A16 3297070244364 34698&simpl=msg-f%3A16329707024... 1/1



511719
Alaria Lanpher
1269 Blakely Road
Colchester, VT 05446

Michael Clark
Superintendent of School
5038 US-2

North Hero, VT 05474

Dear Mr. Clark,

I am writing to formally request an extension for my .20 fte music teacher contract for North
Hero School. | have applied for full time or increased fte positions out of district and | am waiting
to hear back about those opportunities. | have greatly enjoyed my time at North Hero School
and do intend on returning if those opportunities fall through. Thank you.

Sincerely,

Music Teacher
North Hero School



5/8/2019 Grand Isle Supervisory Union Mail - Re: contract signing extension

4 " ‘. o
G 1 l E Megan Devinny <mdevinny@gisu.org>

by Coogle

Re: contract sighing extension
1 message

Michael Clark <mclark@gisu.org> Wed, May 1, 2019 at 4:44 PM
To: Coori Sellers <csellers@gisu.org>

Cc: Lauren Thomas <lthomas@gisu.org>, Gary Marckres <gmarckres@board.gisu.org>, Michael Inners
<minners@board.gisu.org>, Don Bartlett <dbartlett@board.gisu.org>, Nathan Robinson <nrobinson@board.gisu.org>,
Dorothy Sacca <dsacca@gisu.org>, Megan Devinny <mdevinny@gisu.org>

Coori
I have received your request and will be sure that it is added to the CIUUSD Board meeting agenda which is scheduled
for May 14, 2019.

On Wed, May 1, 2019 at 3:01 PM Coori Sellers <csellers@gisu.org> wrote:
Dear board members,

I'm writing to formally request an extension on signing my contract. Preferably, | would like the deadline to extend to
June 15th.

Please let me know if you need any more information from me.

Thank you for taking the time to consider my request.

Coori Sellers

i School Counselor
¢ Grand Isle School
(802)372-6913 (ext. 103)
csellers@gisu.org

Michael J. Clark
Grand Isle Supervisory Union

Superintendent
(802) 372-6921

CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION. THIS MESSAGE MAY NOT BE FORWARDED.

The information contained in this communication, including

any attachments, is confidential,constitutes privileged ,
communication, and is intended only for the use of the addressee.

This message may not be forwarded without prior consent from

the sender. The information in this e-mail is also protected

by the rights afforded under Family Educational Rights and

Privacy Act (FERPA) and school district policies. Any unauthorized
use, forwarding, distribution,disclosure, printing or copying is
strictly prohibited and may be unlawful. If you have received this
communication in error, please notify us immediately at (802) 372-6921

or return e-mail,and delete any copies of this message immediately.
Any inadvertent disclosure of this communication shall not compromise
the confidential nature of the communication.

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ik=a2d051aa83&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-{%3A163236 38808526528 16&simpl=msg-{%3A16323638808... 1/2



To the Board of Champlain Islands Unified Union School District,

This is my 5th year with Isle La Motte, and | have enjoyed every minute. It has become my
home as a teacher! However, having moved to Milton recently with an almost 3 year old and 1
year old, | am coming to the sad realization that it might be time to seek a position closer to my
residency. | am hoping to receive permission to have my contract deadline extended while | look
for other positions. | have some applications out right now, including a job opening in Milton,
which is right around the corner of where we moved.

Thank you,

Megan Walker
Isle La Motte School



5/9/2019 Grand Isle Supervisory Union Mail - Fwd: Contract

GmM

byl ol

Megan Devinny <mdevinny@gisu.org>

Fwd: Contract
1 message

Michael Clark <mclark@gisu.org> Thu, May 9, 2019 at 1:17 PM
To: Megan Devinny <mdevinny@gisu.org>

---------- Forwarded message ---------

From: Mandy Alarcon <malarcon@gisu.org>

Date: Thu, May 9, 2019 at 12:16 PM

Subject: Contract

To: Gary Marckres <gmarckres@board.gisu.org>, Lauren Thomas <Ithomas@gisu.org>, Michael Clark
<mclark@gisu.org>

School Board and Team,

1 am writing to ask for an extension on signing my contract. | have one application in at another school closer to my
home. Additionally, a mistake was made on my contract and | have not yet received the corrected version. {l know
this is currently being worked on).

| appreciate your time and consideration in this matter!
Sincerely,

Mandy Alarcon

(I will submit a formal, signed
request as well, | just wanted to send the email as | know these things are time sensitive.)

Michael J. Clark
Grand Isle Supervisory Union
Superintendent

(802) 372-6921

CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION. THIS MESSAGE MAY NOT BE FORWARDED.

The information contained in this communication, including

any attachments, is confidential,constitutes privileged

communication, and is intended only for the use of the addressee.

This message may not be forwarded without prior consent from

the sender. The information in this e-mail is also protected

by the rights afforded under Family Educational Rights and

Privacy Act (FERPA) and school district policies. Any unauthorized
use, forwarding, distribution,disclosure, printing or copying is
strictly prohibited and may be unlawful. If you have received this
communication in error, please notify us immediately at (862) 372-6921

or return e-mail,and delete any copies of this message immediately.
Any inadvertent disclosure of this communication shall not compromise
the confidential nature of the communication.

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ik=a2d051aa83&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A16330756 15656 113800&simpl=msg-f%3A16330756156... 1/2



Superintendent’s Report

May 2019

Negotiations
Meetings between the Teachers Association and the GISU School Board Negotiations committee are
ongoing.

* There is a tentative agreement with the CIUUSD support staff.

Residency Verification Process

Thanks to the board’s modifying the process for this year we have narrowed the residency verification
for students down to just a handful of students still unverified. We will begin the process for students
identifying where they will be going to school next year soon. Thank you for your help.

Integrated Field Review

The Integrated Field Review went smoothly . | anticipate receiving at least a draft of the report by the
end of May. | am hopeful there will be a copy that is able to be shared with the boards at the June
meeting or a summer meeting.

Status of Moving the GISU Office

Things are coming together for the move. I'm still waiting for one more quote for the HVAC work
however two companies are working on providing that quote. We are on track with Exterus, the
furniture and wall company. | met in April with DC Electric to get a quote on the Electrical work which
will need to be done. Dave Brisson has looked at the phone system and our needs and has found a
solution which will save the GISU money.

FY 18 Audit/Grant Funds ‘
Recently | have shared information with board members via email updating you on the FY 18 Audit and
implications for FY 17 Grant Funds that have not been sent to the GISU. In an effort to make sure
everyone has the same information, what follows are those communications:



Michael Clark <mclark@gisu.org> Apr 5,2019, 9:03 PM
to Jane, Mason, Gary, Melanie, Michael, Robert

Jane, Melanie, Mason, Gary, and Michael

I am forwarding you an email | just sent to Secretary French and his team
summarizing the meeting Rob and | had with them on Thursday as well as our
plan to move forward. | believe we are making progress however | am concerned
that in the future we need to create a way for Michelle Hetling to have more time
to support Rob in ensuring the GISU is meeting our reporting requirements. | will
plan to talk more about this at the next GISU meeting.

| hope you have a great weekend. If you have any questions or concerns please
call or email me any time. | will likely be out of cell coverage during daylight hours
this weekend but if you leave a message | can respond in the morning or
evening.

Thank you for all you do to support education throughout the Islands.

From: Michael Clark <mclark@gisu.org>

Sent: Friday, April 05, 2019 8:52 PM

To: French, Daniel <Daniel.French@vermont.gov>; Ryan, Cassandra
<Cassandra.Ryan@vermont.gov>; Byrne, Emily <Emily.Byrne@vermont.gov>; Simmons, Emily
<Emily.Simmons@vermont.gov>

Cc: Rob Gess <rgess@gisu.org>

Subject: Summary of GISU-AOE 4 April 2019 meeting

Secretary French

Thank you for meeting with Rob and me yesterday. I appreciate the honest, direct, and
professional manner you and your staff conducted the meeting. Furthermore, I left the
meeting feeling like the AOE was looking for ways to support the work of the GISU.

Summary of meeting:

The AOE asked for the meeting because it is concerned about the financial status of the
GISU. This concern is primarily driven by the fact the AOE is holding approximately
$750,000 of grant funds the GISU has earned but can not currently be released as a result
of the GISU needing to satisfy some important reporting requirements. Furthermore, some
of the funds (approximately $150,000) are related to earnings which are in danger of going
stale and not being able to be released by the AOE unless the reporting requirements are
met in a critically timely manner. Your team identified 5 requirements the GISU needs to
meet in order to meet our obligations which will allow the AOE to release the funds.
These 5 requirements include;

1. Completion and submission of the FY 18 STAT Book

2. More information regarding the FY 17 Single Audit Corrective Action Plan

3. Updates to the FY 17 SEER Report

4. Update the FY 17 SEFA to reflect final FY 17 Audit



5. Completed FY 18 GISU Single Audit

GISU Actions/Timeline

Completion and Submission of the FY 18 STAT Book

The GISU has contracted with Kara Greaves, the former Essex Caledonia Supervisory
Union, to support the GISU Business office. Rob and I met with Kara today and provided
her the information necessary to complete the FY 18 STAT Book. Kara has indicated she
will begin this work over the weekend and will prioritize completing it as quickly as
possible. I will provide a written update of progress on Friday, April 12, 2019.

More information regarding the FY 17 Single Audit Corrective Action Plan

At the meeting, the AOE team indicated the AOE was looking for two items related to the
FY 17 Single Audit Corrective Action Plan the GISU submitted. Specifically, an update
regarding Balance Sheet Reconciliations and the Accounting Manual indicated by Sullivan
Powers. If there are other parts of the Corrective Action Plan the AOE would like
addressed please let me know as soon as possible and I will create a plan for providing that
information. Balance Sheet Reconciliations: GISU has made significant

progress regarding balance sheet reconciliations Rob Gess will provide specific
information regarding this progress to the AOE on or before April 10, 2019. GISU
Accounting manual: GISU has worked on an Accounting Manual Rob Gess emailed a
copy of the GISU Accounting Manual to the AOE on April 4, 2019.

Updates to the FY 17 SEER Report
It is my understanding that prior to Rob Gess leaving the AOE on April 4, 2019, the
required SEER report was located at the AOE satisfying this requirement.

Update the FY 17 SEFA to reflect final FY 17 Audit

Rob Gess worked on this today and will contact Robert Coathup on Monday, April 8,
2019, for guidance/technical assistance regarding the steps required resubmit the SEFA.
The GISU goal will be to either have the 2017 SEFA adjusted and uploaded or a report to
the AOE when the SEFA will be adjusted and uploaded on or before April 10, 2019.

Completed FY 18 GISU Single Audit

I contacted Rick Brigham of Sullivan Powers via email today and have requested a
telephone meeting on April 8 or 9, 2019 to get an understanding of when the GISU can
expect a completed FY 18 Single Audit or to get a specific list of anything that is
potentially holding up the Audit process from moving forward. I will report my findings
in writing to the AOE on April 12, 2019.

Important Dates
April 10, 2019, Rob Gess to submit Balance Sheet Reconciliation Report to the AOE.

April 10, 2019, Rob Gess to either submit the Adjusted FY 17 SEFA or a report to the
AOE when this will be completed



April 12, 2019, Michael Clark will provide a written report to the AOE outlining the FY
18 Stat Book and FY 18 Audit Updates.

The GISU and I take this matter seriously and will work as quickly as possible to resolve
the issues. Please let me know if you believe I have missed anything of substance related
to this situation and I will take the steps necessary to address those concerns.

I will be forwarding a copy of this email to the 5 GISU board chairs.

Thank you for your support.

Michael J. Clatk
Grand Isle Supetvisory Union

Superintendent
(802) 372-6921

CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION. THIS MESSAGE MAY NOT BE FORWARDED.

The information contained in this communication, including

any attachments, is confidential,constitutes privileged
communication, and is intended only for the use of the addressee.
This message may not be forwarded without prior consent from

the sender. The information in this e-mail is also protected

by the rights afforded under Family Educational Rights and

Privacy Act (FERPA) and school district policies. Any unauthorized
use, forwarding, distribution,disclosure, printing or copying is
strictly prohibited and may be unlawful. If you have received this
communication in error, please notify us immediately at (802) 372-6921
or return e-mail,and delete any copies of this message immediately.
Any inadvertent disclosure of this communication shall not compromise
the confidential nature of the communication.

Michael Clark <mclark@gisu.org>

Board Chairs

GISU made significant progress in addressing the 5 required action items this week.
The AOE has confirmed the completion of 3 of the 5 items. Forwarded with this email is
the detailed summary to the AOE | sent tonight. | will copy you on the update next
week.

Please call or email me if you have any questions or concerns.

---------- Forwarded message ---------

From: Michael Clark <mclark@gisu.org>

Date: Fri, Apr 12, 2019 at 10:33 PM

Subject: Re: Summary of GISU-AOE 4 April 2019 meeting




To: Byrne, Emily <Emily.Byrne@vermont.gov>

Cc: French, Daniel <Daniel.French@vermont.gov>, Ryan, Cassandra
<Cassandra.Ryan@vermont.gov>, Simmons, Emily <Emily.Simmons@vermont.gov>,
Rob Gess <rgess@gisu.org>

GISU has had a productive week. Based on reports from the AOE, GISU has cleared 3
of the 5 required action items. GISU was also able to provide all of the required
information for Sullivan Powers to work on the FY 18 GISU Single Audit. Finally, Kara
has made progress on the GISU FY 18 STAT Book. Below is a more detailed summary
of the 5 required action items.

GISU Actions/Timeline

Completion and Submission of the FY 18 STAT Book

The GISU has contracted with Kara Greaves, the former Essex Caledonia Supervisory
Union, to support the GISU Business office. The FY 18 STAT Book work for the 5 local
GISU Districts is complete

Kara is making progress on the GISU portion and expects to either have the FY 18
STAT Book complete by Friday, April 19th or will be able to provide a timeline of when it
is expected to be done.

I will provide the AOE a Written Update regarding the STAT Book on 4-19-2019.

More information regarding the FY 17 Single Audit Corrective Action Plan

In an April 12, 2019, Email Robert Coathup confirmed: “The CAP and all the documents
provided has been reviewed, and on April 12, 2019, the FY 2017 Single Audit for Grand
Isle Supervisory Union is accepted and now closed.”

Updates to the FY 17 SEER Report
In an April 10, 2019 email Emily Byrne confirmed this requirement has been met.

Update the FY 17 SEFA to reflect final FY 17 Audit

In an April 12, 2019, Email Robert Coathup confirmed: “The CAP and all the documents
provided has been reviewed, and on April 12, 2019, the FY 2017 Single Audit for Grand
Isle Supervisory Union is accepted and now closed.”

Completed FY 18 GISU Single Audit

| communicated with Rick Brigham of Sullivan Powers on Monday, April 8th. Rick was
able to identify items which are holding up theaudit from moving forward. The GISU
Business Office was able to work its way through the list and submitted the required
materials on 4-10-2019 and the afternoon of 4-12-2019. As of this report, all items on
the list have been completed. | emailed Rick Brigham on 4-12-2019 to confirm that he
agrees Sullivan Powers has all of the required materials. Sullivan has indicated that if
they have all of the requested documentation the GISU Single Audit would be treated as



a priority. | will update the AOE regarding the progress of the FY 18 GISU
Single Audit Completion in writing on 4-19-2019.

Important Dates

4-19-2019 M. Clark to provide a written update to the AOE regarding the status of the
FY 18 Stat Book and the FY 18 GISU SingleAudit.

Thank you for the help and support this week. | believe GISU is making significant
progress

On Wed, Apr 10, 2019 at 5:54 PM Byrne, Emily <Emily.Byrne@vermont.qov> wrote:
Thank you for your thorough review of the meeting, Michael.

| wanted to confirm that we have the final FY 2017 SEER and it has been completed to AOEs satisfaction.
If Kara needs help with Statbook, please have her reach out to Sean Cousino.

Finally, thank you and Rob for all of your hard work to get the GISU. It has been a pleasure working with
both of you on this, | am excited to hear about the progress that is being made. Best of luck as you
finish out these final pieces for 2017/2018. Hopefully next year you can reduce the number of fiscal year
you are working in ©.

Best,

Emily

Emily Byrne

VT Agency of Education
emily.byrne@vermont.gov
O | (802) 479-7459

C | (802) 477-2304

Michael J. Clatk
Grand Isle Supetvisory Union

Superintendent
(802) 372-6921

CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION. THIS MESSAGE MAY NOT BE FORWARDED.

The information contained in this communication, including
any attachments, is confidential,constitutes privileged



communication, and is intended only for the use of the addressee.
This message may not be forwarded without prior consent from

the sender. The information in this e-mail is also protected

by the rights afforded under Family Educational Rights and

Privacy Act (FERPA) and school district policies. Any unauthorized
use, forwarding, distribution,disclosure, printing or copying is
strictly prohibited and may be unlawful. If you have received this
communication in error, please notify us immediately at (802) 372-6921
or return e-mail,and delete any copies of this message immediately.
Any inadvertent disclosure of this communication shall not compromise
the confidential nature of the communication.

Michael Clark <mclark@gisu.org> May 3, 2019, 4:31 PM (6 days

ago)
to Michael, Trevor, Mallory, ginnilee01221973, Stephaniejade74, Gary, Don, Nathan, Michae
1, Jane, Joyce, Mason, Jennifer, Bridget, Melanie, David, Bentley, Bob

PLEASE DO NOT RESPOND ALL TO THIS EMAIL. IF YOU WOULD LIKE TO EMAIL
OR CALL ME I'M AVAILABLE BY CELL OR EMAIL ALL WEEKEND.

Board Chairs and Members

| usually communicate this type of information directly to just board chairs before
sharing later with board members. However, due to the serious and time sensitive
nature of this communication, | felt it was important to share will all board members
now.

If you would like to talk with me please call or email anytime. PLEASE DO NOT
RESPOND ALL TO THIS EMAIL

Thank you for all you do to support education in the Islands.

Michael Clark <mclark@gisu.org> Fri, May 3, 4:23 PM (6 days ago)
to Daniel, Emily, Cassandra, Emily, Rob

Secretary French, Emily and Cassandra

The GISU has been making good progress regarding the completion of the FY 18 STAT Book and
FY 18 Audit completion.

As I have mentioned Kara Greaves has been contracted to complete the GISU FY 18 STAT Book.
At this point, Kara has let me know that it is almost complete and she runs the "edit check”, then
she and Rob should be able to addtess any issues. I believe the FY 18 STAT Book requirement
can be completed by Friday, May 10, 2019.

Below is a summary of whete GISU is with the FY 18 Audit as outlined in an email with Sullivan
Powers today:

Rick

I'm preparing the weekly GISU memo for the AOE regarding audit progress. Below is where we believe GISU is
with the process:

1 - Hot Lunch expenses - on GISU from the schools



2 - IDEA B time certifications (we cannot locate them here, have contacted Beth for help)

3 - IDEAB - expense (add'l backup for invoice requested)

4 - Title I pmits - to Alburgh and GI (Auditors requested add'l backup)

5 - Title I - time certifications (for D King 15t balf of FY'18)

6 - Duplicate journal entries based on guidance from anditors (we sent gl accounts that changed to anditors on 4/ 24.).
They also made entries. We are awaiting guidance from them/ add'l correcting entries.

Completed this week:

1 - SEFA revised (sent 4/30)

2 - Revised Assessment reconciliation (sent 5/3)

3 - We completed BS account recons and sent to anditors on 4/ 26 and sent revised TB 5 /2.

4 - Title I student info (Megan Grube supplied directly to auditor)

5 - Responded 5/ 2 to new questions from anditor regarding prior week issues - all these issues now resolved

Sullivan and Powers responded with the following email:
Good afternoon Michael,

I feel like your summary that you sent today is fairly complete.
I did reach out to Meagan Grube to schedule time to go over GISU for single andit compliance testing next weck.

As I mentioned when you first discussed a deadline, It was a very aggressive target based on the amount of work done
at that point.

I feel between your staff and mine we have made tremendous progress and my goal is to keep working to get it 1o you as
so0n as possible.

1 would feel much more confident with a date two weeks out from the May 12" deadline. If the State would grant that
exctension I am very confident we could get it to them before then

Thanks,

Rick ( ’
Richard Brigham,CPA
Partner

Sullivan, Powers & Company
77 Barre Street / PO Box 947
Montpelier VT 05602

Phone: (802) 223-2352 x 116
Fax: (802) 223-3578

NEXT STEPS

As you can see from Rick's response GISU and Sullivan Powers undetstand how important the
completion of the FY 18 Audit is, "I feel between yout staff and mine we have made
ttemendous progress and my goal is to keep working to get it to you as soon as possible."



Both Sullivan and Powers and GISU have been wotking to make the May 15th deadline outlined in
Cassandra's April 11, 2019 email.

You can also see from Rick's response, "As I mentioned when you first discussed a deadline, It
was a very aggressive target based on the amount of work done at that point....

I would feel much more confident with a date two weeks out from the May 12" deadline. If
the State would grant that extension I am very confident we could get it to them before
then.", that although GISU and Sullivan Powers will continue to try to complete the work prior to
May 15, 2019, Rick is concerned we may not be able to meet that deadline. Rick does express
confidence that we will have the work completed prior to May 27, 2019

I am confident you understand how much of an impact losing $150,515.07 will have on Supervisory
Union and Member Districts. I believe you have seen a marked improvement in the professionalism
as well as what the GISU and its Business Office has been able to produce in the last nine months
(as well as the last year and 2 half). I am committed to completing all of the requitements priot to
the original May 15th deadline and will continue to update the AOE on a regular basis. However, 1
also recognize that this may not be possible and would like to respectfully request a two-
week extension if necessary.

I am convinced that based on the progress we have made in the last nine months, the improvements
to systems, as well as the expetience gained by our staff, the GISU will not be in a similar position
next year or the foreseeable future. I understand this is a challenging situation and appreciate your
consideration.

Thank you for your assistance.

French, Daniel May 6, 2019, 2:20 PM (3 days
ago)
to Cassandra, Emily, Rob, Kathy, me

Mike,

| have met with the school finance team to review your request to extend the May 15, 2019
deadline. The $150,515.07 in question are FY2017 federal funds which limits the AOE’s ability
to offer flexibility to extend the deadline.

The FY2017 funds expired on September 30, 2018 with a final liquidation date of December 31,
2018. The Agency requested the funds prior to December 31, 2018 in anticipation of GISU
completing the required reports. The Agency no longer has the option to hold the federal funds
and must return the funds to the US Treasury. The deadline of May 15, 2019 represents the
final date the AOE can receive materials in order to process payment before the Agency begins
the return process.



As such, | am not able to offer an extension and all reports must be received at the AOE on or
prior to May 15, 2019. | appreciate the progress the SU has made on completing these
requirements and Agency staff remain available to assist.

Dan

Daniel M. French, Ed.D.

Secretary of Education

Vermont Agency of Education

219 North Main Street, Suite 402

Barre VT 05641

Tel: (802) 479-1030 Fax: (802) 479-1835
daniel.french@vermont.gov | @danfrench

Michael Clark <mclark@gisu.org> May 7, 2019, 5:05 PM (2 days

ago)
to Michael, Trevor, Mallory, ginnilee01221973, Stephaniejade74, Gary, Don, Nathan, Michae
1, Jane, Joyce, Mason, Jennifer, Bridget, Melanie, David, Bentley, Bob

PLEASE DO NOT RESPOND ALL TO THIS EMAIL

Dear Board Members

This email is a follow up to the email | sent on Friday. Secretary French has responded that the VT AOE
is not able to give the GISU an extension. (Please see Secretary French’s email below)

I promptly notified Sullivan and Powers that we would not be granted an extension and that | was
hopeful we could make the May 15, 2019 deadline. (Please see my email below)

Rick Brigham from Sullivan and Powers responded and I've attached his email. Rick indicated Sullivan
Powers was looking for some things from GISU. | have checked in with Rob and and Michele and believe
they have completed all of the items Sullivan Powers is looking for. Sullivan and Powers did send a new
task today related to assessments which they are working on today.

I met with Rob yesterday and asked him to make sure that everything that can be done to request the
funds be released is done and either ready to go or submitted to the AOE so that once the audit is
uploaded to the Federal Audit Clearing house there is nothing slowing the process down. Rob has also
been working on this today.

Rick Brigham has indicated he will be at the GISU office on Wednesday and Thursday this week and | will
be sure to follow up with him during his time here.

We will continue to do everything we can to make the AOE deadline.

If you have questions or concerns please call or email me any time.



French, Daniel Mon, May 6, 2:20 PM (23 hours ago)

to Cassandra, Emily, Rob, Kathy, me
Mike,

| have met with the school finance team to review your request to extend the May 15, 2019
deadline. The $150,515.07 in question are FY2017 federal funds which limits the AOE’s ability
to offer flexibility to extend the deadline.

The FY2017 funds expired on September 30, 2018 with a final liquidation date of December 31,
2018. The Agency requested the funds prior to December 31, 2018 in anticipation of GISU
completing the required reports. The Agency no longer has the option to hold the federal funds
and must return the funds to the US Treasury. The deadline of May 15, 2019 represents the
final date the AOE can receive materials in order to process payment before the Agency begins
the return process.

As such, | am not able to offer an extension and all reports must be received at the AOE on or
prior to May 15; 2019. | appreciate the progress the SU has made on completing these
requirements and Agency staff remain available to assist.

Dan

Daniel M. French, Ed.D.

Secretary of Education

Vermont Agency of Education

219 North Main Street, Suite 402

Barre VT 05641

Tel: (802) 479-1030 Fax: (802) 479-1835

Michael Clark <mclark@gisu.org> May 6,2019, 2:28 PM (23 hours ago)

to rbrigham, Robert

Rick

| made the request to the AOE to extend the deadline for two weeks but Secretary
French wrote back today indicating we will not be granted an extension (Secretary
French's Response forwarded with this email). They are firm with a May 15th deadline.
| know you have indicated this is a very aggressive timeline I'm hopeful we can meet it.
Is there anything more GISU or the AOE can do accomplish this?



VERMONT SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION

2 Prospect Street
Montpelier VT 05602
802-223-3580
MEMO
TO: Gary Marckres, Chair, Champlain Islands Unified Union School District
FROM: Sue Ceglowski, Director of Legal and Policy Services
DATE: February 7, 2019
RE: CIUUSD/GISU Policy Review — REQUIRED Policies
CC: CIUUSD Board Members

Michael Clark, Superintendent

The Champlain Islands Unified Union School District (“CIUUSD”) Board has requested a
review of the Grand Isle Supervisory Union (*GISU”) policies in preparation for CIUUSD’s
policy adoption process as a new unified union district. This is to summarize my findings after
reviewing all of GISU's required policies. As a reminder, the VSBA lists policies as “required”
when a state or federal law or regulation states, or a regulatory agency advises, that a school
district must have a policy governing its activities in a certain area.

GISU does not have two required policies. In addition, some GISU’s required policies should be
updated. The following table reflects which policies are missing, which are in need of revision
and which are up-to-date. Explanations regarding the need for revision will follow the table:

Bl G ol 2.

X

VSBA Policy Name & Code GISU Policy Name & Code Needs Revision
Board Member Conflict of Interest Board Member Conflict of Interest | No
(Al (B3)

Substitute Teachers (B1) Substitute Teachers (D6) No
Volunteers and Work Study Students | Volunteers and Work Study No
(B2) Students
(D7)
Alcohol & Drug-Free Workplace Alcohol and Drug-Free Workplace | No
(B3) D8)
Drug & Alcohol Testing: Mandatory Drug & Alcohol No
Transportation Employees (B4) Prohibition and Testing Policy:
Transportation Employees (D11)
Prevention of Employee Harassment of Employees (D12) | Yes
Harassment
(BS)
HIPAA Compliance (B6) Health Insurance Portability and No
Accountability Act Compliance
D13)
Tobacco Prohibition (B7) Tobacco Prohibitien (E8) Yes
Education Records (C1) Student Records (IF5) Yes
Student Alcohol & Drugs (C2) Student Alcohol and Drugs (F7) No




%

| VSBA Policy Name & Code GJISU Policy Name & Code Needs Revision
Transportation (C3) Transportation (F9) No
Limited English Proficiency Students | Limited English Proficiency No
(C4) Students (F19)
Firearms (C5) Firearms/Weapons (F21) Yes
Participation of Home Study Participation of Home Study Yes
Students Students in School Programs and
(C6) Activities (FF23)
Student Attendance (C7) Student Attendance (IF25) Yes
Pupil Privacy Rights (C8) Pupil Privacy (F27) Yes
Federal Child Nutrition Act Federal Child Nutrition Act Yes
‘Wellness Policy (C9) Wellness Policy (F28)
Prevention of Harassment, Hazing | Prevention of Harassment, Yes
and Bullying of Students Policy Hazing and Bullying of Students
(C10) 31
Prevention of Harassment, Hazing Prevention of Harassment, Hazing | No
and Bullying of Students Procedures | and Bullying of Students
(C10P) Procedures (F31-P)
Student Freedom of Expression in | Student Publications (F15) Yes
Schiool-Sponsored Media (C11)
Proficiency Based Graduation GISU does not have this policy Adopt policy
Requirements (D1) .
Responsible Computer, Network and | Student Computer and Intemet Use | No
Internet Use (D3) (G1D)
Title ] Comparability Policy (D4) Title I Comparability Policy (G13) | No
Animal Dissection (D5) Animal Dissection (G14) No
Class Size Policy (D6) Class Size Policy (G12) Yes
Title I, Part A, Parental Involvement | Title I, Part A, Parental No
(E1) Involvement (H7)
Travel Reimbursement (I'1) GISU does not have this policy Adopt policy

The following required policies are missing from GISU’s policy manual and should be included

in CIUUSD’s policy manual:

Proficiency Based Graduation Requirements: GISU does not have this required policy.
Recommend that CIUUSD adopt a policy based on the language of VSBA's model policy D1.

Travel Reimbursement Policy: GISU does not have this required policy. Recommend that

CIUUSD adopt a policy based on the language of VSBA’s model policy F1.

The following policies should be updated to be consistent with statutory or regulatory

requirements:

Harassment of Employees (D12): GISU’s policy was adopted in 2015 and is missing language
requiring that the witness, complainant and accused shall keep confidential matters related to the



charge of unlawful harassment. Recommend rescinding this policy and adopting new policy
based on VSBA's model policy which was updated in 2016.

Tobacco Prohibition (E8): GISU’s policy was adopted in 2007 and is lacking definitions of
“tobacco substitutes™ and “tobacco paraphernalia.” Act 14 of 2013 prohibits individuals under
age 18 from possessing “tobacco substitutes” and “tobacco paraphermalia”, in addition to
“tobacco products.” These changes address the issues of electronic cigarettes and vaping which
have become a significant problem. Recommend rescinding this policy and adopting new policy
based on VSBA’s model policy B7.

Student Records (F5): GISU’s policy is lengthy and contains details that should be included in
procedures. Recommend rescinding this policy and adopting new policy based on VSBA’s
model policy C1. Recommend that Superintendent develop procedures as set forth in the model
policy (which could include details from the cwuirent policy).

Firearms (F20): GISU’s policy contains some of the language from VSBA’s model policy but
not all of it. GISU’s policy is confusing because it contains a lengthy definition of “weapon” but
prohibits bringing a firearm (not a weapon) to school. Recommend rescinding this policy and
adopting new policy based on VSBA’s model policy C5. The model policy’s reference to the
Commissioner of Education in the last paragraph should be changed to the Secretary of
Education.

Participation of Home Study Students in School Programs and Activities (F23): GISU’s
policy contains details that are more appropriately located in procedures. Recommend
rescinding policy and adopting new policy based on VSBA’s model policy C6. Recommend that
Superintendent develop and implement procedures that comply with State Board Rules including
4400 and 9200.3.1.

Student Attendance (F25): GISU’s policy does not require the Superintendent to ensure that
the school board appoints a Truant Officer and ensure the appointment is recorded with the
Clerk. This is an important responsibility which should be included in the policy. Recommend
rescinding GISU policy and adopting new policy based on VSBA model policy. Recommend
that Superintendent develop or review procedures to ensure they address the issues listed in
VSBA'’s model policy.

Pupil Privacy (F27): GISU’s policy contains the language from VSBA’s model policy but
contains additional language which may be more appropriate to include in procedures. Also,
GISU’s policy is confusing because there are two policy statement sections. Recommend
rescission of GISU’s policy and adoption of a new policy based on VSBA’s model policy C8.
Recommend that Superintendent develop or review procedures as set forth in the model policy.

Federal Child Nutrition Act Weliness Policy (28): GISU’s policy was adopted in 2015 and
does not contain updated requirements regarding food and beverage marketing, goals for
physical activity, and goals for nutrition services. VSBA's model policy was revised in 2017
based on changes to federal law and guidance from the Venmont Agency of Agriculture, Food
and Markets, the Vermont Agency of Education and the Vermont Departinent of Health entitled



“Vermont School Wellness Policy Guidelines.” Recommend that GISU rescind its policy and
adopt VSBA’s mode! policy, C9 (may be revised to meet local needs and reflect commmunity
priorities).

Prevention of Harassment, Hazing and Bullying of Students (24 and F24P): GISU’s policy
tracks the language of VSBA's model policy. GISU’s Appendix A, listing the designated
employees to receive complaints, does not include the specific names of individuals.
Recommend that GISU include the names and titles of at least two designated employees in
Appendix A of the policy.

Student Publications (F15): GISU’s policy was adopted in 2007. In 2017, the Vermont
legislature passed 16 V.S.A. § 1623(i) which requires each school or its govemning body to adopt
a written policy consistent with the provisions of § 1623. VSBA’s model policy C11, Student
Freedom of Expression in School-Sponsored Media, was developed in 2018 based on this
requirement. Recommend GISU rescind its Student Publications policy and adopt VSBA’s
model policy C11.

Class Size Policy (G14) and Class Size Guidelines and Procedures (G14P): GISU’s policy
language tracks the Janguage of VSBA’s model policy except that if refers to State Board Rule
2000 in the first sentence rather than the Vermont statute which requires this policy. Recommend
that the first sentence of GISU’s policy be aimended to read as follows: “It is the intent of the
Board to comply with 16 V.S.A. § 242(5) requiring superintendents to work with school boards
to develop policy guidelines for minimum and optimal average class sizes in regular and
technical education classes.”

The following policy does not need to be revised but it requires the development of compacts:

Title I, Part A, Parental Involvement (H7): GISU’s policy mirrors VSBA's model policy and
does not need to be revised. Please note this policy requires two compacts: School District
Parental Involvement Compact (to be developed by Superintendent or designee) and School
Level Parental Involvement Compact (to be developed by Principal or designee). Recommend
Superintendent and Principals develop compacts or review existing compacts. Model compacts
‘are attached to VSBA.’s model policy E1.

Please let me know if you have any questions regarding the initial phase of this review. As part
of the next phase of my review, I will provide:

* An analysis of VSBA’s recommended policies compared to GISU's policies - do you
have all the recommended ones? If so, how old are they, do they need revision, etc?

¢ A proposed indexing system

¢ A recommended process for dealing with remaining policies

I look forward to meeting with the CTUUSD board on February 12 to discuss the results of the
required policy review. Again, if you have any questions, please let me know.



CODE A1

CODE A1 - BOARD MEMBER CONFLICT OF INTEREST
Policy

Itis the policy of the Grand Isle Supervisory Union and its member districts that it is the ethical and
legal duty of all school board members to avoid conflicts of interest as well as the appearance of
conflicts of interest.

Definitions

“Conflict of interest” means a situation when a board member’s private interests, as distinguished
from the board member’s interest as a member of the general public, would benefit from or be
harmed by his or her actions as a member of the board.

“Majority vote”, for the purposes of this policy, means a majority of the full board less the individual
board member(s) subject to a complaint of a conflict of interest under this policy. A quorum of the
board would not be sufficient for the board to take action under the complaint section of this policy.

Implementation

In order to comply with the obligations thus imposed, the board and its members will adhere to the
following recommended standards.

1. Board members will be familiar with the VSBA or similar Code of Ethics, and will observe
their provisions.

2. Board members will be familiar with, and adhere to, those provisions of Vermont education
law which define school board powers and govern board member compensation and public
bidding processes.

3. Aboard member will not take any action which is intended to give the impression that he or
she would represent special interests or partisan politics for personal gain.

4. Aboard member will do nothing intended to give the false impression that he or she has the
authority to make decisions or take action on behalf of the board or the school
administration.

5. Aboard member will not use his or her position on the board in any manner intended to
unfairly promote personal financial interests or the financial interests of family members,
friends or supporters.

6. Aboard member will not solicit or accept anything of value in return for taking particular
positions on matters before the board.

7. Aboard member will do nothing intended to leave the impression that his or her position
on any issue can be influenced by anything other than a fair presentation of all sides of the
question.

Avoiding Conflicts

When a board member becomes aware that he or she is in a position that creates a conflict of
interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest as defined in state law or this policy, he or she
will declare the nature and extent of the conflict or appearance of conflict for inclusion in the board
minutes, and will abstain from voting or participating in the discussion of the issue giving rise to the
conflict.



Complaints of Conflict of Interest

When a conflict of interest claim against a board member is brought to the board in writing and is

signed by another board member or a member of the public, and the board member against whom
the claim is made does not concur that a conflict in fact exists, the following board procedures will
be followed:

1.

Upon a majority vote of the remaining board members, or upon order of the chair, the board
will hold an informal hearing on the conflict of interest claim, giving both the board member
and the person bringing the claim an opportunity to be heard.

At the conclusion of the informal hearing, the remaining board members will determine by
majority vote whether to:

Issue a public finding that the conflict of interest charge is not supported by the evidence
and is therefore dismissed;

Issue a public finding that the conflict of interest charge is supported by the evidence and
that the member should disqualify him or herself from voting or otherwise participating in
the board deliberations or decision related to that issue, as required by Vermont statute;
and/or,

Issue a public finding that the conflict of interest charge is supported by the evidence and
the board member should be formally censured or subjected to such other action as may be
allowed by law.

GISU Alburgh CIUUSD South Hero

Date Warned 4/22/2019 4/1/2019 2/12/2019 4/18/2019

Date Adopted

Legal Reference(s): 16 VSA §262(d) (Election of Officers)

16 VSA §557 (Gratuity/Compensation Prohibited)

16 VSA §558 (Eligibility for Election to School Board)

16 VSA §559 (Public Bids)

16 VSA §563(20) (Powers of School Boards)

VSBA Code of Ethics for School Board Members - Code B3-R




CODE B1
CODE B1 - SUBSTITUTE TEACHERS

Policy

It is the policy of the Grand Isle Supervisory Union and its member School Districts to employ
substitute educators who will meet the minimum qualifications outlined by Vermont Standards
Board for Professional Educators (VSBPE) Rule, as well as the additional requirements established
by this policy.

Qualifications

No person will be placed on the qualified substitute list unless that person has graduated from high
school and meets the following additional minimal requirements:

All substitutes will have comply with all current statutory regulations such as a criminal records
check.

Unlicensed Persons

An unlicensed person may be employed as a substitute teacher for up to 30 consecutive calendar
days in the same assignment. The Superintendent may apply to the Vermont Standards Board for
Professional Educators or its designee for emergency or provisional licenses as provided in VSBPE
Rules 5350 and 5360.

Licensed Educators

A substitute teacher who is licensed but not appropriately endorsed for the position for which he or
she is employed may fill a position for thirty consecutive calendar days in the same assignment. The
Superintendent may apply to the Vermont Standards Board for Professional Educators or its
designee for an additional thirty days for specific substitute teachers, or for provisional licenses as
provided in VSBPE Rule 5350.

Administrative Responsibilities
Alist of qualified substitute teachers, organized by grade level and subject, will be developed by the
Superintendent or his or her designee for all schools in the District.

The Superintendent or his or her designee will conduct an orientation session for substitute
teachers each year. Each teacher under contract will compile a packet of information containing
pertinent substitute teacher information as defined by the Principal.

Substitute teachers will be paid per diem wages as determined by the Superintendent from year to
year. Distinctions in pay level may be made based on the need for the substitute teacher to prepare
lessons and assess and record student progress, on the length of service and on the credentials of
the substitute teacher.



GISU

Alburgh

CIUUSD

South Hero

Date Warned

4/22/2019

4/1/2019

2/12/2019

4/18/2019

Date Adopted

Legal Reference(s): Vt. Standards Board for Professional Educators Rules §§5381 et seq.

Cross Reference:

16 VSA §558 (Employment of school board members)

16 VSA §251 et seq. (Access to Criminal Records)




CODE B2
CODE B2 - VOLUNTEERS AND WORK STUDY STUDENTS

The Grand Isle Supervisory Union and its member School Districts recognize the valuable
contributions made to the schools by volunteers and work study students. Appropriate supervision
of volunteers and work study students will enhance their contributions as well as fulfill the
responsibility that the school district has for the education and safety of its students.

Definitions
For purposes of this policy and administrative rules and procedures developed pursuant to this
policy:

1. Volunteer means an individual not employed by the school district who works on an
occasional or regular basis in the school setting to assist the staff. A volunteer works
without compensation or economic benefits unless otherwise stipulated in a memorandum
of understanding.

2. Work Study Student means a post-secondary student who receives compensation for work
performed at a school operated by the district as part of a work experience program
sponsored or provided by the college or university at which he or she is enrolled. A student
working toward a teaching credential who is placed as a student teacher at a district school
is not a work study student.

Policy

The Superintendent shall develop administrative rules and procedures to ensure that volunteers
and work study students are appropriately screened prior to entering into service in the school
district, and that only volunteers and work study students who have been screened and approved
by the superintendent have extended unsupervised contact with students. The screening process
utilized by the school district shall minimally include a name and birth date check with the Vermont
Internet Sex Abuse Registry for any person being considered for service as a work study student. A
person who is on the Vermont Internet Sex Offender Registry shall not be eligible to be a work
study student.

GISU Alburgh CIUUSD South Hero

Date Warned 4/22/2019 4/1/2019 2/12/2019 4/18/2019

Date Adopted

Legal Reference(s): 16 VSA §260
Cross Reference:




CODE B3

CODE B3 - ALCOHOL AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE

Policy

It is the policy of the Grand Isle Supervisory Union and its member School Districts to maintain a
workplace free of alcohol and drugs. No employee, volunteer or work study student will unlawfully
manufacture, distribute, dispense, possess or use alcohol or any drug on or in the workplace. Nor
shall any employee, volunteer or work study student be in the workplace while unlawfully under
the influence of drugs or alcohol. If there are reasonable grounds to believe that an employee,
volunteer or work study student is unlawfully under the influence of drugs or alcohol while on or in
the workplace, the person will be immediately removed from the performance of his or her duties.

Definitions

Drug means any narcotic drug, hallucinogenic drug, amphetamine, barbiturate, marijuana or
any other controlled substance as defined by state or federal statute or regulation.

Workplace means the site for the performance of work for the School District or Supervisory
Union, including any school building or any school premises and any school-owned vehicle or
any other school-approved vehicle used to transport students to and from school or school
activities. It also includes off school property during any school-sponsored or school-approved
activity, event or function such as a field trip or athletic event, where students are under the
jurisdiction of the School District.

Employee means all persons directly or indirectly compensated by the School District or
Supervisory Union for providing services to the district and all employees of independent
contractors who provide services to the district.

Volunteer means an individual not employed by the School District or Supervisory Union who
works on an occasional or regular basis or under a memorandum of understanding, in the
school setting to assist the staff. A volunteer works without compensation or economic benefits
provided by the school district.

Work Study Student means a student who receives compensation for work performed at the
school as part of a college work experience program. For purposes of this policy, an intern,
working without pay, will be considered as a work study student. A student working toward a
teaching credential who may be placed at a school as a student teacher is not a work study
student.

Employee Responsibilities

As a condition of employment, each employee will notify the Superintendent in writing of his or her
conviction of any criminal drug statute for a violation occurring on or in the workplace as defined
above. The employee must notify the Superintendent no later than five days after such conviction.
Entry of a nolo contendere plea shall constitute a conviction for purposes of this policy, as will any
judicial finding of guilt or imposition of sentence. Within 10 days of notification from an employee,
or receipt of actual notice of an alcohol or drug conviction, the Superintendent will notify any
federal or state officers or agencies legally entitled to such notification.

An employee, volunteer or work study student who violates the terms of this policy may be asked
to satisfactorily complete an alcohol or drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program approved
by the Superintendent. In addition, an employee who violates the terms of this policy will be subject
to disciplinary action, including but not limited to non-renewal, suspension or termination at the
discretion of the Superintendent or, if required, the Board.



GISU

Alburgh

CIUUSD

South Hero

Date Warned

4/22/2019

4/1/2019

2/12/2019

4/18/2019

Date Adopted




CODE B4

CODE B4 - DRUG & ALCOHOL TESTING: TRANSPORTATION OF EMPLOYEES

Policy

The Grand Isle Supervisory Union and its member School Districts will comply with state and
federal law and regulations requiring a drug and alcohol testing program for school bus and
commercial vehicle drivers. The superintendent or his or her designee will implement procedures
to conduct alcohol and drug tests for all safety sensitive transportation employees as required by
the federal Omnibus Transportation Employee Testing Act of 1991.

GISU

Alburgh

CIUUSD

South Hero

Date Warned

4/22/2019

4/1/2019

2/12/2019

4/18/2019

Date Adopted

Legal Reference(s): 49 USC §§ 5331, 31306 (Omnibus Transportation Employee Testing Act of 1991)
49 CFR Parts 40, 382, 391, 392, 395 and 653

Cross Reference:

21 VSA 511 et seq.




CODE B6 - HIPAA Compliance

CODE B6

The Grand Isle Supervisory Union and its member School Districts shall comply with the
requirements of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) with
regard to any employee benefit or group health plan provided by the district that is subject to the
requirements of the Act. The Superintendent or his or her designee shall develop and implement
procedures necessary to ensure continuing compliance with the requirements of HIPAA.

GISU Alburgh CIUUSD South Hero
Date Warned 4/22/2019 4/1/2019 2/12/2019 4/18/2019
Date Adopted
Legal References: 42 USC 1320d-2 and 1320d-4

45 CFR Subpart C




CODE C2
CODE C2 - STUDENT ALCOHOL AND DRUGS

It is the policy of the Grand Isle Supervisory Union and its member School Districts that no student
shall unlawfully possess, use, sell, give or otherwise transmit, or be under the influence of any drug,
regulated substance, or alcohol on any school property, or at any school sponsored activity away
from or within the school. It is further the policy of the district to make appropriate referrals in
cases of substance abuse.

Definitions

Substance Abuse is the ingestion of drugs and or alcohol in such a way that it interferes with a
person’s ability to perform physically, intellectually, emotionally, or socially.

Drug means any narcotic drug, hallucinogenic drug, amphetamine, barbiturate, marijuana or
any other controlled substance as defined by state or federal regulation or statute.

Educational Program

The Superintendent and his or her designees shall work with appropriate staff members to develop
and conduct an alcohol and drug abuse educational program. The program shall be consistent with
the Vermont Alcohol and Drug Education Curriculum Plan. If the school district is a recipient of
federal Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act funds, the Act will be considered in the
development of the alcohol and drug abuse educational program.

Support and Referral System

In each school the principal or his or her designee shall develop a support and referral system for
screening students who refer themselves and students who are referred by staff for suspected drug
and/or alcohol use and/or abuse problems. The support and referral system will include processes
to determine the need for further screening, education, counseling or referral for treatment in each
referred case. In addition, the principal shall establish procedures for administering emergency
first aid related to alcohol and drug abuse.

Cooperative Agreements

The Superintendent shall annually designate an individual to be responsible for providing
information to students and parents or guardians about outside agencies that provide substance
abuse prevention services and to encourage the use of their services and programs when
appropriate.

The District/Supervisory Union has entered into a cooperative agreement with Northwestern
Counseling and Support Services (NCSS) will provide substance abuse treatment to students who
are referred through the school’s support and referral system, or who refer themselves for
treatment.

Staff Training

The Superintendent and his or her designee will work with appropriate staff to provide training for
teachers and health and guidance personnel who teach or provide other services in the school’s
alcohol and drug abuse prevention education program. The training provided will meet the
requirements of State Board Rules related to staff training.

Community Involvement

The Principals will work with school staff and community members to implement a program to
inform the community about substance abuse issues in accord with State Board of Education rules.



Annual Report

In a standard format provided by the Vermont Department of Education, the Superintendent will
submit an annual report to the Commissioner of Education describing substance abuse education
programs and their effectiveness.

Notification

The Principals shall ensure that parents and students are given copies of the standards of conduct
and disciplinary sanctions contained in the procedures related to this policy, and are notified that
compliance with the standards of conduct is mandatory. Notice to students will, at a minimum, be
provided through inclusion of these standards and sanctions in the student handbook distributed to
all students at the beginning of each school year or when a student enrolls in the school.

GISU Alburgh CIUUSD South Hero

Date Warned 4/22/2019 4/1/2019 2/12/2019 4/18/2019

Date Adopted




CODE C3

CODE C3 - TRANSPORTATION
Policy

Where it is reasonable and necessary to enable a student entitled or required to attend an
elementary or a secondary school within the Grand Isle Supervisory Union and its member School
Districts, the District/Supervisory Union may furnish transportation on public roads to students
who reside within the District. The District/Supervisory Union may also provide transportation to
non-resident students as authorized by the board(s).

For districts furnishing transportation:

The superintendent and his or her designee will establish routes and designate stops after
considering both the safety of children and efficiency of operation. The superintendent will
consider the following factors when determining routes and stops.

1. The age and health of pupils,
2. Distance to be traveled,

3. Condition of the road, and

4. Type of highway.

The superintendent may consider any other factors he or she deems appropriate when establishing
routes and designated stops.

The superintendent shall submit to the school board for approval any contracts, leases or purchases
necessary to maintain and operate transportation equipment, and shall include in his or her annual
report to the board information as to all pupils transported by the school district and the expense
thereof.

GISU Alburgh CIUUSD South Hero

Date Warned 4/22/2019 4/1/2019 2/12/2019 4/18/2019

Date Adopted

Legal Reference(s): 16 VSA §§1221,1222, 1224 (Student transportation)
16 VSA §1551 (Technical center transport)
Cross Reference:




CODE D6

CODE D6 - CLASS SIZE POLICY

It is the intent of the Board to comply with 16 V.S.A § 242(5) requiring Superintendents to work
with school boards to develop policy guidelines for minimum and optimal average class sizes in
regular and technical education classes. Class size guidelines will be used to inform annual
decisions related to staffing and program offerings.

Implementation

1. The Superintendent or his or her designee shall, in consultation with building principals,
develop supervisory union wide class minimum, maximum and optimum average class size
guidelines that take into account the instructional needs of specific elementary grade
intervals and required and elective courses at the secondary level.

2. Class size guidelines in the supervisory union may vary as necessary to reflect differences
among school districts due to geography and other factors, such as school size and
programmatic needs.

3. The guidelines shall also ensure compliance with state or federal requirements related to
matters such as student-teacher ratios, special education, technical education and English
Language Learners.

4. The Superintendent shall report to the Board at least annually on the implementation of this
policy, and shall include in his or her report information related to the use of the guidelines
in determining actual class sizes and program offerings in the schools within the
supervisory union.

5. This policy shall be posted on the supervisory union’s website and forwarded to the
Secretary of Education.

Class sizes by Rule 2000:
K-3 fewer than 20 when banded together
4-8 fewer than 25 when banded together

Instructional Minimum Optimal Range Vermont State
Grade Cluster Average per p 8 Board Rule 2000
Area Per Grade Cluster :
Grade Cluster Maximums

K-3 All 15 15-20 20

4-8 All 15 15-25 25

GISU Alburgh CIUUSD South Hero

Date Warned 4/22/2019 4/1/2019 2/12/2019 4/18/2019
Date Adopted




CODE F1

CODE F1 - TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT
Policy

It is the policy of the Grand Isle Supervisory Union and member districts to reimburse the
reasonable expenses for travel for school business on actual cost, except IRS rate for mileage by its
employees, school board members and volunteers, to the extent that budgeted funds permit.

Reimbursement will be only for those expenses that are reasonable and necessary for the activities
of the Grand Isle Supervisory Union and member districts. The method of reimbursement will be
consistent whether expenses are incurred in furtherance of federally funded or non-federally
funded activities. Prior approval from the Superintendent or his or her designee will be required.

Implementation

Pursuant to the policy and consistent with relevant collective bargaining agreements, the
Superintendent or his or her designee will establish written procedures to govern the
reimbursement and method of prior approval for the following: air/rail travel, meals, lodging, and
mileage.

GISU Alburgh CIUUSD South Hero

Date Adopted 4/22/2019 4/1/2019 2/12/2019 4/18/2019

Date Warned

Legal Reference(s): 2 CFR 200.474




CODE F5 (Mandatory)

CODE F5 - EDUCATION RECORDS
Policy

The Grand Isle Supervisory Union and its member School Districts recognize the importance of
keeping accurate and appropriate education records for students as part of a sound educational
program and are committed to act as trustees of this information, maintaining these records for
educational purposes to serve the best interests of its students.

The principles of accuracy and confidentiality underlie all policies and procedures for the
collection, maintenance, disclosure and destruction of education records. It is the policy of
the district to protect the confidentiality of education records and release information only
as permitted by law. Annually or when the student enrolls, the District/Supervisory Union
will inform parents, guardians, and students eighteen years and older of their right to
inspect, review, and seek amendment of the student’s education records. The
District/Supervisory Union will inform parents, guardians, and students eighteen years and
older of items considered directory information through notices distributed at the
beginning of each school year or when a student enrolls.

The building principal will be the custodian of all education records in a given school. The
superintendent has overall responsibility for education records throughout the district and
for assuring that adequate systems are in place to maintain such records and to provide
parents with access to them in accordance with state and federal law. The superintendent
is responsible for developing procedures to assure the consistent implementation of this
policy. The procedures shall comply with all federal and state laws and regulations
governing access to and the collection, maintenance, disclosure and destruction of
education records.

Definitions

All terms used in this policy, and the procedures developed for the implementation of this
policy, shall be defined, where applicable, as those terms are defined in the Family
Educational Rights and Privacy Act and in the federal regulations promulgated pursuant to
that Act.

a. Other school official determined to have legitimate educational
interests means a person who needs to review a student’s education
record or receive information therefrom in order to fulfill his or her
employment or official responsibilities and who is:

a. A person employed by the Grand Isle Supervisory Union Town
School Districts as an administrator, supervisor, educator or
substitute therefore, paraprofessional or support staff member,
including  tutorial, health, law enforcement, custodial,
transportation, nutrition, athletic, extra-or-co-curricular, clerical
or other support staff;

b. A member of the Grand Isle Supervisory Union Town School
Districts School Board;



C.

d.

e.

A person or company with whom the Grand Isle Supervisory
Union Town School Districts / District has contracted to perform a
special task, including an attorney, auditor, medical consultant,
therapist, evaluator;

A volunteer assisting another school official in the performance of
his or her tasks; and

Any other person designated by the Grand Isle Supervisory Union
Town School Districts or Principal of any school within the GISU to
have legitimate educational interests.

b. Directory Information. The school will release directory information
without prior written consent unless the parent or guardian or eligible
student informs the Principal in writing that any or all of the information
designated below should not be released without prior consent.

mo Ao o

Implementation

Student’s name, address, date of birth, dates of enrollment;
Parent or guardian’s name and address;

Student’s grade level classification;

Student’s participation in recognized school activities and sports;
Weight and height of member of athletic teams;

Student’s diplomas, certificates, awards and honors received.

NOTE: FERPA regulations permit the identification as directory information any “information
contained in an education record of a student which would not generally be considered
- harmful or an invasion of privacy if disclosed.” The above list is, therefore, suggestive.

i.  Release/Review of Student Information

a. Disclosure of student information will be made only with the
written consent of the parent or guardian or ehglble student
subject to the following exceptions: :

i. Information may be disclosed to officials of the school in
which the student enrolled who have a legitimate
educational interest in the records and require the
information to adequately carry out their jobs;

ii. Information may be disclosed upon request to officials
of a school in which the student seeks or intends to
enroll;

iii. Under court order or subpoena;

iv. To individuals seeking Directory Information: see
definitions

v. In connection with a student’s request for financial aid;

vi. To appropriate parties in a health or safety emergency.

b. Parents or guardians of students or eligible students may"
inspect and review the student’s records upon request. Parents
or guardians should submit requests to the Principal in writing
specifying as precisely as possible the information he/she
wishes to inspect. The Principal will make appropriate




arrangements to meet with the parent(s) or guardian(s) for
such inspection according to procedures developed by the
school’s administration.

If an eligible student or parent or guardian believes the education records
contain information that is inaccurate, misleading or in violation of any of the
student’s rights, he/she may request the building Principal to amend the
record. If the building Principal decides not to amend the record as
requested, the student or parent or guardian may appeal using the District’s
general appeal process.

C.

Non-custodial Parents: Access to a student’s school records
shall not be denied to a parent solely because that parent has
not been awarded parental rights and responsibilities by a
court. However, access will be denied where a court order or
other legally binding document specifically revokes a parent’s
right of access to such records.

Each contract entered into between the Grand Isle Supervisory
Union Town School Districts and persons or entities who may
either receive a student’s education records or personally
identifiable information shall contain a provision setting forth
the restrictions on re-disclosure of information from education
records.

School District will maintain a record of all requests for and/or
disclosures of information from a student’s records according
to the school’s procedures. The District will record, also, all
requests for amendments of the record and the disposition of
the request(s).

ii.  Juvenile Court Records. Vermont Superior Court, Family Division, is
required to inform in writing the Superintendent of the District in
which a student is enrolled within seven days of a court finding that
the student has committed a delinquent act requiring notice. In the
event notification is received from Vermont Superior Court that a
student has committed a delinquent act:

a. Sharing of Information. The Superintendent shall inform only

those for whom the information is necessary for the
rehabilitation program of the child or for the protection of staff
or students, and only after evaluating rehabilitation and
protection measures that do not involve informing staff or
students. “Need to know” should be narrowly and strictly
interpreted. Persons receiving this information shall not
discuss the information with anyone except the
Superintendent, the child, the child’s parent or guardian, law
enforcement personnel, the student’s probation officer or
others who have been similarly informed.

Maintenance of Records. The notice from the Superior Court
shall be maintained by the Superintendent in a file separate
from the student’s education record. Upon the graduation of




Date Warned:
Date Adopted:

the student or when the student turns 18, the Superintendent
shall destroy the record. If a student transfers to another
public or private school, the Superintendent shall forward the
written notice in the original marked envelope to the
Superintendent or headmaster of the school to which the
student is transferring.

Transfer of Records. When a student transfers to another

C.
school or school district, all student records shall be
forwarded.

9/6/15,10/8/15
10/20/15



CODE C1i

CODE C1 - EDUCATION RECORDS

Polic

The (}}’rand Isle Supervisory Union and its member Districts recognize the importance of
keeping accurate and appropriate education recordsti for students as part of a sound
educational program and is committed to act as trustee of this information, maintaining
these records for educational purposes to serve the best interests of its students.

The principles of accuracy and confidentiality underlie all policies and procedures for the
collection, maintenance, disclosure and destruction of education records. It is the policy of
the district to protect the confidentiality of education records and release information only
as permitted by law. Annually or when the student enrolls, the district will informiii
parents, guardians, and students eighteen years and older of their right to inspect, review,
and seek amendment of the student’s education records. The district will inform parents
guardians, and students eighteen years and older of items considered directory
information through notices distributed at the beginning of each school year or when a
student enrolls.iv

The building principal will be the custodian of all education records in a given school. The
Superintendent has overall responsibility for education records throughout the district and
for assuring that adequate systems are in place to maintain such records and to provide
parents with access to them in accordance with state and federal law. The Superintendent
is responsible for developing procedures to assure the consistent implementation of this
policy. The procedures shall comply with all federal and state laws and regulations
governing access to and the collection, maintenance, disclosure and destruction of
education records.

Definitions
All terms used in this policy, and the procedures developed for the implementation of this
policy, shall be defined, where applicable, as those terms are defined in the Family
Educational Rights and Privacy Act and in the federal regulations promulgated pursuant to
that Act.v
a. Other school official determined to have legitimate educational
interests means a person who needs to review a student’s education
record or receive information therefrom in order to fulfill his or her
employment or official responsibilities and who is:
a. A person employed by the Grand Isle Supervisory Union Town
School Districts as an administrator, supervisor, educator or
substitute therefore, paraprofessional or support staff member,
including tutorial, health, law enforcement, custodial,
transportation, nutrition, athletic, extra-or-co-curricular, clerical
or other support staff;
b. A member of the Grand Isle Supervisory Union Town School
Districts School Board;



C.

d.

e.

A person or company with whom the Grand Isle Supervisory
Union Town School Districts / District has contracted to perform a
special task, including an attorney, auditor, medical consultant,
therapist, evaluator;

A volunteer assisting another school official in the performance of
his or her tasks; and

Any other person designated by the Grand Isle Supervisory Union
Town School Districts or Principal of any school within the GISU to
have legitimate educational interests.

b. Directory Information. The school will release directory information
without prior written consent unless the parent or guardian or eligible
student informs the Principal in writing that any or all of the information
designated below should not be released without prior consent.

me Qa0 o

Implementation

Student’s name, address, date of birth, dates of enrollment;
Parent or guardian’s name and address;

Student’s grade level classification;

Student’s participation in recognized school activities and sports;
Weight and height of member of athletic teams;

Student’s diplomas, certificates, awards and honors received.

NOTE: FERPA regulations permit the identification as directory information any “information
contained in an education record of a student which would not generally be considered
harmful or an invasion of privacy if disclosed.” The above list is, therefore, suggestive.

. Release/Review of Student Information

a. Disclosure of student information will be made only with the
written consent of the parent or guardian or eligible student
subject to the following exceptions:

i. Information may be disclosed to officials of the school in
which the student enrolled who have a legitimate
educational interest in the records and require the
information to adequately carry out their jobs;

ii. Information may be disclosed upon request to officials
of a school in which the student seeks or intends to
enroll;

iii. Under court order or subpoena;

iv. To individuals seeking Directory Information: see
definitions

v. In connection with a student’s request for financial aid;

vi. To appropriate parties in a health or safety emergency.

b. Parents or guardians of students or eligible students may
inspect and review the student’s records upon request. Parents
or guardians should submit requests to the Principal in writing
specifying as precisely as possible the information he/she
wishes to inspect. The Principal will make appropriate




arrangements to meet with the parent(s) or guardian(s) for
such inspection according to procedures developed by the
school’s administration.

If an eligible student or parent or guardian believes the education records
contain information that is inaccurate, misleading or in violation of any of the
student’s rights, he/she may request the building Principal to amend the
record. If the building Principal decides not to amend the record as
requested, the student or parent or guardian may appeal using the District’s
general appeal process.

C.

Non-custodial Parents: Access to a student’s school records
shall not be denied to a parent solely because that parent has
not been awarded parental rights and responsibilities by a
court. However, access will be denied where a court order or
other legally binding document specifically revokes a parent’s
right of access to such records.

Each contract entered into between the Grand Isle Supervisory
Union Town School Districts and persons or entities who may
either receive a student’s education records or personally
identifiable information shall contain a provision setting forth
the restrictions on re-disclosure of information from education
records.

School District will maintain a record of all requests for and/or
disclosures of information from a student’s records according
to the school’s procedures. The District will record, also, all
requests for amendments of the record and the disposition of
the request(s).

il.  Juvenile Court Records. Vermont Superior Court, Family Division, is
required to inform in writing the Superintendent of the District in
which a student is enrolled within seven days of a court finding that
the student has committed a delinquent act requiring notice. In the
event notification is received from Vermont Superior Court that a
student has committed a delinquent act:

a. Sharing of Information. The Superintendent shall inform only

those for whom the information is necessary for the
rehabilitation program of the child or for the protection of staff
or students, and only after evaluating rehabilitation and
protection measures that do not involve informing staff or
students. “Need to know” should be narrowly and strictly
interpreted. Persons receiving this information shall not
discuss the information with anyone except the
Superintendent, the child, the child’s parent or guardian, law
enforcement personnel, the student's probation officer or
others who have been similarly informed.

Maintenance of Records. The notice from the Superior Court
shall be maintained by the Superintendent in a file separate
from the student’s education record. Upon the graduation of




the student or when the student turns 18, the Superintendent
shall destroy the record. If a student transfers to another
public or private school, the Superintendent shall forward the
written notice in the original marked envelope to the
Superintendent or headmaster of the school to which the
student is transferring.

c. Transfer of Records. When a student transfers to another
school or school district, all student records shall be
forwarded.

GISU Alburgh CIUUSD South Hero

Date Warned 5/14/2019

Date Adopted

" The federal Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) does not explicitly require a school board policy
on the protection of student records. Its requirements are stated in the negative... "no funds shall be made available
to any educational agency...which has a policy of denying...the right of parents...to review and inspect educational
records. 20 US.C. 1232g; 34 C.F.R. Part 99. Nor does the State Board Manual of Rules and Practices explicitly
require a school board policy on student records. “Each school shall develop and implement a system of
maintaining student records...which is in compliance with FERPA.” SBE Rule 2120.8.3.3.

" 4 “record” means any information recorded in any way, including but not limited to, handwriting, print, computer
media, video or audio tape, film, microfilm and microfiche. The term “education records” means those records that
are (1) directly related to a student, and (2) maintained by the school district, a school within the district, or a party
acting for the school district or a school within the school district. It does not include a teacher’s notes that are in
the teacher’s sole possession and shared only with a substitute teacher. 20 U.S.C. 1232g; 34 C.F.R. 99.3.

it School districts are required to find an effective way to notify parents whose primary language is not English. 34
C.F.R. §99.9.

¥ The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act allows schools to designate certain information as “directory
information” and release it after providing public notice of the categories of information it seeks to release.
“Directory information” includes, but is not limited to, a student’s name, address, telephone listing, date and place
of birth, major field of study, participation in officially recognized activities and sports, weight and height of
members of athletic teams, dates of attendance, degrees and awards received, and the most recent previous
educational agency or institution attended by the student. Additional information may be released with specific
parental consent. 12 U.5.C. §1232g; 34 C.F.R. §99.3.

12 US.C. §1232g; 34 C.F.R §99.3.




CODE F19 (Mandatory)

CODE F19 - LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY STUDENTS

Policy

It is the policy of the Grand Isle Supervisory Union and its member School Districts to ensure that
students whose primary or dominant language is not English, and who therefore have limited-
English proficiency (LEP), have equitable access to school programs as required by law.

Implementation
The superintendent or his or her designee shall be responsible for developing and implementing
procedures to comply with federal and state laws, which define standards for serving LEP students.

Date Warned: 9/6/15,10/8/15
Date Adopted: 10/20/15
Legal Reference(s): 42 USC§§2000 d et seq. (Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964);
20 USC 6801 et seq. (English Language Acquisition, Enhancement, and Academic
Achievement Act)
20 USC § 7801(25) (Definition of Limited English Proficiency)
34 CFR Part 100
9 VSA §4502 (Discrimination, public accommodations)
Vermont State Board of Education Manual of Rules and Procedures §1250
Cross Reference:



CODE C4

CODE C4 - LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY STUDENTS

Policy

It is the policy of the Grand Isle Supervisory Union and its member School Districts to ensure that
students whose primary or dominant language is not English, and who therefore have limited-
English proficiency (LEP), have equitable access to school programs as required by law.

Implementation

The superintendent or his or her designee shall be responsible for developing and implementing
procedures to comply with federal and state laws, which define standards for serving LEP students.

GISU

Alburgh

CIUUSD

South Hero

Date Warned

5/14/2019

Date Adopted

Legal Reference(s): 42 USC§§2000 d et seq. (Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964);
20 USC 6801 et seq. (English Language Acquisition, Enhancement, and Academic

Achievement Act)

20 USC § 7801(25) (Definition of Limited English Proficiency)
34 CFR Part 100

9 VSA §4502 (Discrimination, public accommodations)

Vermont State Board of Education Manual of Rules and Procedures §1250

Cross Reference:




Policy

CODE F23 (Mandatory)
CODE F23 - PARTICIPATION OF HOME STUDY STUDENTS

It is the policy of the Grand Isle Supervisory Union and its member School Districts to comply with
the requirements of Act 119 of 1998 by allowing home study students to participate in courses,
programs, activities, and services and use school educational materials and equipment.

The Superintendent will develop administrative procedures that comply with rules promulgated by
the Vermont State Board of Education as is necessary to implement this policy.

General Guidelines for Home Study Student Participation

1.

Special Services: Special education services are available to all students found eligible under
criteria set forth in state and federal regulations.

Compliance with Procedures: All students will comply with the application and enrollment
deadlines as well as all legal and policy requirements such as immunization and the
provision of student information including health records, emergency contacts and other
necessary background information outlined in the administrative procedures. All students
must abide by rules of conduct and other conditions set forth in the student handbook,
school policies and procedures.

Supervision of Students: School personnel are responsible for supervising students during
their approved participation in school sponsored activities. Parents of home study students
must provide supervision for their children when they are at school but not participating
formally in school activities.

Transportation: Home study students may participate in the regular school transportation

arrangements to attend school programs in which they are enrolled. The school will not
supply special transportation except as provided for in law.

Participation of Home Study Students in Programs and Activities Shall Be Subject to the
Following Conditions:

1.

Home study students must supply to the school a copy of their formal home study
enrollment notification from the Commissioner of Education.

All students are subject to the same age, performance, and pre-requisite standards for
admission to courses and co-curricular activities.

Home study students seeking admission to courses requiring prerequisites will be asked to
demonstrate academic achievement comparable to that required of fully enrolled students
meeting prerequisite standards. The teach/guidance counselor/Principal will discuss
alternative ways to demonstrate achievement with the parents of home study students.
Final determination of a student’s qualifications to enroll in a course requiring prerequisites
will be made by the teacher/ guidance counselor/Principal.

Students may not enroll for single subjects which are taught as part of integrated courses -
those courses that cover two or more subjects and are taught by a single individual or team
- but may seek admission to the integrated course.

Participation in athletic and other extra - curricular programs and activities will be
incompliance with the school’s eligibility requirements as well as with the guidelines
adopted by the Vermont Principal’s Association.



6.

It may be neither practical nor feasible for home study students to participate in special
programs that have unclear or flexible schedules. The parents of home study students must
take the initiative to check with the school on the scheduling of events and possible changes
that may occur.

The parents of home study students may be asked to provide supervision for some activities
on the same basis as the parents of fully enrolled students.

Home study students may participate in the school’s standardized testing program at the
regularly scheduled times after giving appropriate notice to the school as outlined in the
administrative procedures.

Use of Facilities, Equipment and Materials by Home Study Students Is Subject to the
Following Conditions

The use by home study students does not interrupt or disrupt regularly scheduled uses.

Request for use has been made and approved according to the administrative procedures
that apply to all requests for such use.

The use does not involve removal of equipment from the school premises except as
explicitly allowed.

Library books and other materials are signed out according to established procedures and
are subject to replacement or fines for damage or loss as defined in the administrative
procedures.

School Administration

@ The school will include home study students on the school register and count them
for the purpose of state aid for the portion of the school day in which students are enrolled
in academic courses. For each co-curricular activity in which a non-enrolled home study
student participates, the school shall count 0.03 FTE as allowed under rule 9200.3.1. The
capacities of classroom courses and other co-curricular activities are outlined in
administrative procedures and updated regularly to reflect the class sizes specifically
desired by the District, the capacity of special equipment used in science, language, business
laboratories or other specialized classrooms, or other limitations on participation.

® In cases where applications for enrollment exceed capacity, first priority for
enrollment in curricular and co-curricular activities will be determined considering the
following for all students:

O Is the course or activity needed as a pre-requisite to another course
or activity?

© Is graduation of the student dependent upon completion of the
course?

In the absence of other prevailing factors, enrollment will be determined in the following
order of priority:

@ First priority given to fully enrolled students (in co-curricular activities only; this
option may not be applied to admissions to academic programs)

® First come, first served.

When choices for admission to either academic or co-curricular programs must be made
because of limited space, the Supervisory Union will report to the Secretary of Education



and shall provide other information on the integration of home study students into the
public school as request by the Secretary. The Principal (or designee) is responsible for
administering this policy and for all decision made under the direction of this policy. The
Principal will act on all requests within 10 working days of receiving the request.

Appeals Process

Should a parent disagree or have concerns with the Principal’s decision, an appeal may be made to
the Superintendent of Schools. Within ten working days of receiving an appeal, the Superintendent
shall meet with the parent(s) or guardian(s) and make a decision on the appeal in a prompt fashion.
A final appeal from the Superintendent’s decision may be to the School Board which will schedule a
timely hearing and render a final decision within ten working days fo the hearing date.

Date Warned: 9/6/15,10/8/15
Date Adopted: 10/20/15



CODE Cé6'

CODE C6 - PARTICIPATION OF HOME STUDY STUDENTS

Policy

It is the policy of the Grand Isle Supervisory Union and its member School Districts to
comply with the requirements of Act 119 of 1998 by allowing home study students to
participate in courses, programs, activities, and services and use school educational
materials and equipment.

The Superintendent will develop administrative procedures that comply with rules
promulgated by the Vermont State Board of Education as is necessary to implement this
policy.

GISU Alburgh ClUusD South Hero

Date Warned 5/14/2019

Date Adopted

Legal Reference(s): 16 V.S.A. 563 (24) (Powers of school boards)
Vermont State Board of Education Manual of Rules & Practices §§4400, 9200.3.1, 2367
20 U.S.C. §§1400 et seq. (IDEA)
34 C.F.R.§§ 300.450-2, 76.650-662

Cross Reference: Policy Dissemination, Administration & Review (A3)

116 V.S.A. 563(24). School boards are required to”... adopt a policy which, in accordance with rules adopted
by the state board of education, will integrate home study students into its schools through enrollment in
courses, participation in cocurricular and extracurricular activities and use of facilities.” See also SBE Rules
4400-4405.




Policy

CODE F27 (Mandatory)
CODE F27 - PUPIL PRIVACY RIGHTS: STUDENT SURVEYS

It is the intent of the Grand Isle Supervisory Union and its member School Districts to comply with
the provisions of the federal Pupil Privacy Rights Amendment (PPRA) and Vermont State Board of
Education Rules governing the administration of certain student surveys, analyses or evaluations.

Administrative Responsibilities

The superintendent or his or her designee shall develop administrative procedures to ensure
school district compliance with applicable federal and state laws related to pupil privacy. The
administrative procedures shall include provisions related to the following legal requirements:

1.

2.

The right of parents or eligible students to inspect surveys created by third parties before
administration or distribution of the surveys to students;

Any applicable procedures for granting request by a parent for access to such survey within
reasonable time after a request is received;

Arrangements of protect student privacy in the event of the administration or distribution
of a survey to a student containing one or more of the items listed in the federal Pupil
Privacy Rights Amendment;

The right of a parent to inspect any instructional material used as part of the educational
curriculum for the parent’s child, and any applicable procedures for granting access to such
material within a reasonable time after the request is received.

The administration of physical examinations or screenings that the school district may
administer to a student;

The collection, disclosure or use of personal information collected from students for the
purpose of marketing or for selling that information, including arrangements to protect
student privacy in the event of such collection, disclosure or use.

The right of a parent of a student to inspect any instrument used in the collection of
personal information under subparagraph {6) above, and any applicable procedures for
granting a request for such inspection within a reasonable time after receiving the request;
Provisions to ensure that parents are notified of the school district policies and procedures
adopted to comply with federal and state laws and regulations governing pupil privacy,
including, but not limited to, notification of activities involving the collection of personal
information from students, the administration of surveys containing items specifically listed
in the Pupil Privacy Rights Amendment.

Definitions
As used in this policy shall mean:

“Invasive physical examination” means a medical examination that involves the exposure of
private body parts or any act during such examination that includes incision, insertion, or
injection into the body, but does not include a hearing, vision or scoliosis screening.

“Personal information” means individually identifiable information including a student's or
parent’s name address, telephone number, or social security number.

“Instructional material” means instructional content that is provided to a student, regardless of
format. It does not include tests or academic assessments..



“Parent” means a natural or adoptive parent, a legal guardian or other person standing in loco
parentis (such as a grandparent or stepparent with whom the child lives, or a person who is
legally responsible for the welfare of the child).

Policy

1. No student shall be required, without parental consent, to take part in a survey, analysis, or
evaluation funded by the U.S. Department of Education that reveals information concerning:

o oo o

sl

g
h.

Political affiliations or beliefs of a student or a student’s parents;

Mental or psychological problems of a student tor a student’s family;

Sex behavior or attitudes;

Illegal, anti-social, self-incriminating and demeaning behavior;

Critical appraisals of other individuals with whom student respondents have close
family relationships;

Legally recognized privileged or analogous relationships, such as those of lawyers,
physicians or members of the clergy;

Income (other than that required by law to determine eligibility for participation in
a program for receiving financial assistance under such program; or

Religious practices, affiliations, or beliefs or the student or the student’s parents.

2. Parents shall have the right to inspect any survey created by a third party before the survey
is administered or distributed to a student. Requests for inspection shall be in writing, and
shall be made in sufficient time to allow a response at least two weekKs in advance of any
survey to be given.

3. Inaddition parents shall be notified, through the U.S. Mail, email or other direct means, at
least annually at the start of each school year of the specific or approximate dates of any
activities described in 1 & 2 above, and shall be provided an opportunity to opt out of
participation in those activities.

4. Parents shall have the right to inspect, upon request, any instructional material used as part
of the educational curriculum.

Students Rights
The rights provided to parents under the Pupil Rights Amendment and this policy transfer to the
student when the student turns 18 years old, or is an emancipated minor and under applicable

Vermont law.

Date Warned:
Date Adopted:

9/6/15,10/8/15
10/20/15



CODE (8!

CODE C8 - PUPIL PRIVACY RIGHTS

Policy

[t is the intent of the Grand Isle Supervisory Union and it member School Districts to
comply with the provisions of the federal Pupil Privacy Rights Amendment (PPRA)Z and
Vermont State Board of Education Rules3 governing the administration of certain student
surveys, analyses or evaluations.*

Administrative Responsibilities

The Superintendent or his or her designee shall develop administrative procedures to
ensure school district compliance with applicable federal and state laws related to pupil
privacy. The administrative procedures shall include provisions related to the following
legal requirements.5

1. The right of parents or eligible students to inspect surveys created by third parties
before administration or distribution of the surveys to students; ,

2. Any applicable procedures for granting request by a parent for access to such
survey within reasonable time after a request is received;

3. Arrangements of protect student privacy in the event of the administration or
distribution of a survey to a student containing one or more of the items listed in the
federal Pupil Privacy Rights Amendment;6

4. The right of a parent to inspect any instructional material used as part of the
educational curriculum for the parent’s child, and any applicable procedures for
granting access to such material within a reasonable time after the request is
received.”

5. The administration of physical examinations or screenings that the school district
may administer to a student;8

6. The collection, disclosure or use of personal information collected from students for
the purpose of marketing or for selling that information, including arrangements to
protect student privacy in the event of such collection, disclosure or use.?

7. The right of a parent of a student to inspect any instrument used in the collection of
personal information under subparagraph (6) above, and any applicable procedures

! This policy is required by the Federal Protection of Pupil Rights Act, 20 U.S.C. §1232h; Vermont State Board
Manual of Rules and Practices, Rule 2120.8.12(f).

2 See 20 U.S.C. 1232h.

3 See Vermont State Board of Education Rule 2120.8.12(f).

4 The federal law and state regulations requiring board policies on this subject are in some instances limited to
surveys, analyses or evaluations funded in whole or in part by the U.S. Department of Education. See 20 US.C. §
1232h(c)(1). At the board’s discretion, the protections provided by this policy could be expanded to include all
surveys conducted by the school district, regardless of the survey’s funding source.

3 See 20 U.S.C. §1232h(c)(1).

6 See 20 U.S.C. §1232h(c)(1)(B) for the list of eight items that must be included.

7 See 20 U.S.C. §1232h(c)(1)(C).

8 See 20 U.S.C. §1232h(c)(1)(D).

9 See 20 U.S.C. §1232h(c)(1)(E).



for granting a request for such inspection within a reasonable time after receiving

the request;10

8. Provisions to ensure that parents are notified of the school district policies and
procedures adopted to comply with federal and state laws and regulations
governing pupil privacy, including, but not limited to, notification of activities
involving the collection of personal information from students, the administration of
surveys containing items specifically listed in the Pupil Privacy Rights

Amendment.1?

GISU

Alburgh

CIUUSD

South Hero

Date Warned

5/14/2019

Date Adopted

10 See 20 U.S.C. §1232h(c)(1)(F)
It See 20 U.S.C. §1232h(c)(2).




CODE F28 (Mandatory)
CODE F28 - FEDERAL CHILD NUTRITION ACT WELLNESS

Purpose

It is the intent of the Grand Isle Supervisory Union and its member School Districts to comply with
the local policy requirements of the federal Child Nutrition and WIC Reauthorization Act of 2004.
This policy has been developed in accordance with all requirements as presented in current federal
and state legislation.

Policy Statement

It is the policy of the Grand Isle Supervisory Union and its member School Districts to establish
goals for nutrition education, physical activity and other school based activities that are designed to
promote student wellness. With the objective of promoting student health and reducing childhood
obesity, the district will also establish nutrition guidelines for all foods available at school during
the school day.

Goals for Nutrition Promotion and Education
5. The school district shall provide nutrition promotion and education programs as required
by state law and regulations of the State Board of Education. In particular, the district shall
provide a nutrition component in its Comprehensive Health Education program and shall
develop curricular programs intended to accomplish applicable goals enumerated in the
Vermont Framework of Standards and Learning Opportunities.
6. Nutrition education and promotion programs shall be conducted by appropriately licensed
staff members.
7. To the extent practicable, nutrition education and promotion shall be integrated into core
curricula in areas, such as science and family and consumer science courses.
Goals for Physical Activity

a. The district shall provide physical education classes for all students as required by
Education Quality Standards.

b. The district shall provide other physical activity opportunities for students through
recess periods in appropriate grades and, as appropriate, before or after school
activities such as interscholastic athletics and physical activity clubs or intramural
sports.

Goals for Other School Based Activities
i.  The district shall ensure that guidelines for reimbursable school meals
are not less restrictive than regulations and guidance issued by the
Secretary of Agriculture pursuant to sections (a) and (b) of section 9A(a)
and (b) of the Richard B. Russell National School Lunch Act as those
regulations and guidance apply to schools.
il.  The district shall provide adequate space for eating and serving school
meals.
iii.  The district shall provide a clean and safe meal environment for
students.
iv.  The district shall establish meal periods that provide adequate time to
eat and are scheduled at appropriate hours.
v.  Food shall not be used in district schools as a reward or punishment.
vi.  The district shall provide training opportunities as appropriate for food
service and other staff members in areas of nutrition and wellness.



Nutrition Guidelines

1.

2.

No foods of minimal nutritional value, as listed in 7 CFR 210, Appendix B and 7 CFR 220,
Appendix B shall be sold in food service areas during breakfast and lunch periods.

The sale of foods during meal periods in food service areas shall be allowed only if all
income from the sale, including the sale of approved foods or drinks from vending
machines, accrues to the benefit of the school, the school food service program, or the
student organizations sponsoring the sale.

To the extent practicable, the district shall ensure that foods offered at school other than
through the National School Lunch or School Breakfast programs, including foods sold
through vending machines, shall comply with the A la Carte and Vending Guidelines
established by the Vermont Departments of Health and Education.

Policy Implementation

1.

The superintendent or his or her designee shall periodically monitor district programs and
curriculum to ensure compliance with this policy and any administrative procedures
established to carry out the requirements of this policy. The district shall periodically
inform and update the public about the content and implementation of this policy, including
the extent to which district schools are in compliance with this policy, the extent to which
this policy compares to model local school wellness policies and a description of the
progress made in attaining the goals of this policy.

The district shall permit parents, students, representatives of the school food authority,
teachers of physical education, school health professionals, the school board, school
administrators and the general public to participate in the development, implementation
and periodic review and update of this policy.

The superintendent or his or her designee shall report at least annually to the board and to the
public on the district’s compliance with law and policies related to student wellness. The report
shall include information as to the content and implementation of this policy, and an assurance that
district guidelines for reimbursable meals are not less restrictive than regulations and guidelines
issued for schools in accordance with federal law.

Date Warned: 9/6/15,10/8/15
Date Adopted: 10/20/15
Dates Revised:

Legal Reference(s): 16 VSA §§131 & 906(b)(3).

Richard B. Russell National School Lunch Act, 42 USC 1751 et seq.

Child Nutrition Act of 1966, 42 USC 1771 et seq.

Healthy, Hunger Free Kids Act of 2010, Section 204 of Public Law 111-296.
Code of Federal Regulations, 7 CFR Part 210 and Part 220.



CODE €9
CODE C9 - FEDERAL CHILD NUTRITION ACT WELLNESS

Purpose

It is the intent of the Grand Isle Supervisory Union and its member School Districts to
comply with the local policy requirements of the federal Child Nutrition and WIC
Reauthorization Act of 2004 and the Healthy, Hunger-Free Kids Act of 2010 (HHFKA). In
accord with those requirements, this policy has been developed in consultation with
parents, students, representatives of the school food authority, teachers of physical
education, school health professionals, the school board, school administrators and the
general public.

Policy Statement

It is the policy of the Grand Isle Supervisory Union and its member School Districts to
establish goals for nutrition promotion and education, nutrition guidelines, physical
activity and other school based activities that are designed to promote student wellness.
The district will review and consider evidence-based strategies in determining these goals.

I. Goals for Nutrition Promotion and Education.

A. The school district shall provide nutrition promotion and education programs as
required by state law and regulations of the State Board of Education. In particular,
the district shall provide a nutrition component in its Comprehensive Health
Education program and shall develop curricular programs intended to accomplish
applicable goals enumerated in the Vermont Education Quality Standards.

B. Nutrition education and promotion programs shall be conducted by appropriately
licensed staff members.

C. To the extent practicable, nutrition education and promotion shall be integrated into
core curricula in areas such as science and family and consumer science courses.

D. The district will limit food and beverage marketing to the promotion of only those
foods and beverages that meet the USDA Smart Snacks in School nutrition standards
on school campus.



II. Goals for Physical Education and Physical Activity.

A. The district shall provide physical education classes for all students as required by
Education Quality Standards.

B. The district shall offer opportunities for students in grades K-12 to participate in at
least 30 minutes of physical activity within or outside of the school day. Physical
activity may include recess and movement built into the curriculum, but does not
replace physical education classes.

II1. Goals for Nutrition Services

A. The district shall ensure that guidelines for reimbursable school meals are not less
restrictive than regulations and guidance issued by the Secretary of Agriculture
pursuant to sections (a) and (b) of section 9A(a) and (b) of the Richard B. Russell
National School Lunch Act as those regulations and guidance apply to schools.

B. The district shall provide adequate space for eating and serving school meals.
C. The district shall provide a clean and safe meal environment for students.

D. The district shall establish meal periods that provide adequate time to eat and are
scheduled at appropriate hours.

E. Food shall not be used in district schools as a reward or punishment.

F. The district shall provide training opportunities as appropriate for food service and
other staff members in areas of nutrition and wellness.

G. Schools participating in the National School Lunch and School Breakfast programs
shall make free potable water available to children in the meal service areas.

IV. Nutrition Guidelines.

A. The National School Lunch and School Breakfast Programs will meet the
requirements provided in 7 CFR 210 and 7 CFR 220 (National School Lunch
Program and School Breakfast Guidelines.)

B. All foods and beverages outside the reimbursable school meal programs that are
sold to students on the school campus during the school day will meet the USDA
Smart Snacks nutrition standards'.



C. School district fundraisers that occur during the school day will meet the USDA
Smart Snack nutrition standardsti.

D. The district is required to establish nutrition guidelines for all other foods provided,
but not sold to students during the school day. Foods provided but not sold may
include food that is part of a classroom celebration or provided by parents or
community organizations free of charge. [Districts should choose either 1 or 2 below,
or write their own guidelines.]

(1) It is the policy of the district that, when feasible, food provided but not sold should be
limited to those foods that improve the diet and health of students, help mitigate
childhood obesity, and model healthy choices.

(2) Food provided but not sold will, at minimum, comply with the Smart Snacks
Standards'i,

V. Other School Based Activities

The district will implement other wellness based school activities from time to time at the
discretion of the superintendent or his or her designee. These activities will be in
accordance with evidence-based strategies such as those provided in the Vermont School
Wellness Policy Guidelines.

VI. Assessment:

The District will conduct an assessment of the wellness policy every 3 years. This
assessment will determine: compliance with the wellness policy, how the wellness policy
compares to model wellness policies, and progress made in attaining the goals of the
wellness policy.

VII. Policy Implementation.

A. The district will permit parents, students, representatives of the school food
authority, teachers of physical education, school health professionals, the school
board, school administrators and the general public to participate in the
development, implementation, monitoring, and periodic review and update of this

policy.



B. The superintendent or his or her designee shall periodically monitor district
programs and curriculum to ensure compliance with this policy and any
administrative procedures established to carry out the requirements of this policy.

C. The district shall annually inform and update the public about the content and
implementation of this policy, including the extent to which district schools are in
compliance with this policy, the extent to which this policy compares to model local
school wellness policies and a description of the progress made in attaining the
goals of this policy.

D. The superintendent or his or her designee shall report at least annually to the board
and to the public on the district’s compliance with law and policies related to
student wellness. The report shall include information as to the content and
implementation of this policy, and an assurance that district guidelines for
reimbursable meals are not less restrictive than regulations and guidelines issued
for schools in accordance with federal law.

GISU Alburgh CiUUSD South Hero
Date Warned 5/14/2019
Date Adopted

Legal Reference(s): 16 V.S.A. §§131 & 906(b)(3).
Richard B. Russell National School Lunch Act, 42 U.S.C. 1751 et seq.
Child Nutrition Act of 1966, 42 U.S.C. 1771 et seq.
Healthy, Hunger Free Kids Act of 2010, Section 204 of Public Law 111-296.
Code of Federal Regulations, 7 CFR Part 210 and Part 220.

Vermont Education Quality Standards 2120.5

Vermont School Wellness Policy Guidelines, Joint Guidance from Vermont Agency of
Agriculture, Food and Markets, the Vermont Agency of Education and Vermont
Department of Health. 2016.



'[See Resource: Summary, Nutrition Standards for All Foods Sold in School,
hitps.//iwww.fns.usda. gov/sites/default/files/cn/allfoods-summarychart. pdf |

i See above
i il A yseful summary of the Smart Snacks Standards can be found at
https://www.fns.usda.gov/sites/default/files/cn/allfoods-summarychart.pdf



CODE G11 (Mandatory)
CODE G11 - RESPONSIBLE COMPUTER, NETWORK & INTERNET USE

Purpose

The Grand Isle Supervisory Union and its member School Districts recognize that information
technology (IT) is integral to learning and educating today’s children for success in the global
community and fully supports the access of these electronic resources by students and staff. The
purpose of this policy is to:

a. Create an environment that fosters the use of information technology in a manner that
supports and enriches the curriculum, provides opportunities for collaboration, and
enhances staff professional development.

b. Ensure the district takes appropriate measures to maintain the safety of everyone that
accesses the district’s information technology devices, network and web resources.

c. Comply with the requirements of applicable federal and state laws that regulate the
provision of access to the internet and other electronic resources by school districts.

Policy

It is the policy of the Grand Isle Supervisory Union and its member School Districts to provide
students and staff access to a multitude of information technology (IT) resources including the
Internet. These resources provide opportunities to enhance learning and improve communication
within our community and with the global community beyond. However, with the privilege of
access comes the responsibility of students, teachers, staff and the public to exercise responsible
use of these resources. The use by students, staff or others of district IT resources is a privilege, not
aright.

The same rules and expectations govern student use of IT resources as apply to other student
conduct and communications, including but not limited to the district’s harassment and bullying
policies.

The district’'s computer and network resources are the property of the district. Users shall have no
expectation of privacy in anything they create, store, send, receive or display on or over the
district’'s computers or network resources, including personal files and electronic communications.

The superintendent is responsible for establishing procedures governing use of IT resources
consistent with the provisions of this policy. These procedures must include:

1. The Principal or their designee will develop annually, a program for educating students
about responsible digital citizenship. As defined in this policy, a responsible digital citizen
is one who:

1. Respects One’s Self. Users will maintain appropriate standards of language and behavior
when sharing information and images on social networking websites and elsewhere online.
Users refrain from distributing personally identifiable information about themselves and
others.

2. Respects Others. Users refrain from using technologies to bully, tease or harass other
people. Users will report incidents of cyber bullying and harassment in accordance with the
district’s policies on bullying and harassment. Users will also refrain from using another
person’s system account or password or from presenting themselves as another person.



3. Protects One’s Self and Others. Users protect themselves and others by reporting abuse
and not forwarding inappropriate materials and communications. They are responsible at
all times for the proper use of their account by not sharing their system account password.

4. Respects Intellectual Property. Users suitably cite any and all use of websites, books,
media, etc.

5. Protects Intellectual Property. Users request to use the software and media others
produce.

2. Provisions necessary to ensure that Internet service provider(s) and other contractors
comply with applicable restrictions on the collection and disclosure of student data and any
other confidential information stored in district electronic resources.

3. Technology protection measures that provide for the monitoring and filtering of online
activities by all users of district IT, including measures that protect against access to content
that is obscene, child pornography, or harmful to minors.

4. Methods to address the following:

a. Control of access by minors to sites on the Internet that include inappropriate
content, such as content that is:

1. Lewd, vulgar, or profane

2. Threatening

3. Harassing or discriminatory
4. Bullying

5. Terroristic

6. Obscene or pornographic

b. The safety and security of minors when using electronic mail, social media sites, and
other forms of direct electronic communications.

" c. Prevention of unauthorized online access by minors, including “hacking” and other
unlawful activities.

d. Unauthorized disclosure, use, dissemination of personal information regarding
minors.

e. Restriction of minors’ access to materials harmful to them.

5. A process whereby authorized persons may temporarily disable the district’s Internet
filtering measures during use by an adult to enable access for bona fide research or other
lawful purpose.

Policy Application

This policy applies to anyone who accesses the district’s network, collaboration and communication
tools, and/or student information systems either on-site or via a remote location, and anyone who
uses the district’s IT devices either on or off-site.

Limitation/Disclaimer of Liability

The District is not liable for unacceptable use or violations of copyright restrictions or other laws,
user mistakes or negligence, and costs incurred by users. The District is not responsible for
ensuring the accuracy, age appropriateness, or usability of any information found on the District’s
electronic resources network including the Internet. The District is not responsible for any damage
experienced, including, but not limited to, loss of data or interruptions of service. The District is not
responsible for the accuracy or quality of information obtained through or stored on the electronic



resources system including the Internet, or for financial obligations arising through their
unauthorized use.

Enforcement

The District reserves the right to revoke access privileges and/or administer appropriate
disciplinary action for misuse of its IT resources. In the event there is an allegation that a user has
violated this policy, a student will be provided with notice and opportunity to be heard in the
manner set forth in the student disciplinary policy.

Allegations of staff member violations of this policy will be processed in accord with contractual
agreements and legal requirements.

Date Warned: 9/6/15,10/8/15
Date Adopted: 10/20/15
Legal Reference(s): 17 USC §§101-120 (Federal Copyright Act of 1976 as amended)
20 USC§ 6777 et seq. (Enhancing Education Through Technology Act)
18 USC §2251 (Federal Child Pornography Law—Sexual Exploitation and Other
Abuse of Children)
47 USC §254 (Children’s Internet Protection Act)
47 CFR §54.520 (CIPA Certifications)
13 VSA §§2802 et seq. (Obscenity, minors)
13 VSA § 1027 (Disturbing Peace by Use of...Electronic Means)
13 VSA §2605(Voyeurism)



Form G11 (Mandatory)

SAMPLE FORM
Student Acceptable Use Procedures Agreement

General Procedures

Students in the South Hero School District have access to the school's electronic resources for the
purpose of enhancing learning. To gain access to these resources, all students under the age of 18 must
obtain parental permission and must sign and return this form to the person designated. Students 18
and over may sign their own forms.

Students may access the school's electronic resources for educational purposes only. Acceptable use
includes classroom activities, career development, and curriculum driven research and may involve
electronic communication, as designated by the school. The school's electronic resources shall not be
used for commercial or entertainment purposes, as a public access service or a public forum, unless
permission is allowed by the school. Students are expected to follow the rules of personal conduct
outlined in the student handbook, as well as abide by state and federal laws in the use of the school's
electronic resources.

Parents/guardians are warned that some material accessible via the Internet, through the school's
electronic resources, may contain items that are illegal, defamatory, inaccurate or potentially offensive
to some people. While it is the school's intent to provide appropriate electronic resources to enhance
the curriculum, students may find ways to access other materials as well. The District believes the
benefits to students from access to electronic resources and the Internet for information gathering,
research and to provide opportunities for collaboration, exceed the potential disadvantages. Ultimately,
parents/guardians of minors are responsible for setting and conveying the standards that their children
should follow when using electronic resources. To that end, we support and respect each family's right
to decide whether or not to apply for access.

Individual User Responsibilities
System users shall:

1. Understand that electronic mail transmissions and other use of the electronic communication
system is not confidential and may be monitored at any time by designated staff to ensure
appropriate use;

2. Not distribute personally identifiable information about themselves or others by means of the
school's electronic communication system;

3. Be responsible at all times for the proper use of their account by taking all reasonable
precautions to prevent others from gaining access to their system account and password;

4. Not use another person's system account or password, or present themselves another person,
without written permission from the system administrator or school coordinator;

5. Not purposefully access or send materials, which include pictures, video or audio files, that are
rude, disrespectful, abusive, obscene, sexually oriented, threatening, harassing, damaging to
another's reputation, or illegal;

6. Purge electronic mail in accordance with established school e-mail retention guidelines;

7. Not use the school's electronic resources and internet connection for commercial or illegal
purposes, or for any other activity prohibited by school policy; not redistribute copyrighted
programs or data except with the written permission of the copyright holder or designee. Such
permission must be specified in the document or must be obtained directly from the copyright



holder or designee in accordance with applicable copyright laws, school policy, and
administrative regulations;

8. Not plagiarize work using the school's electronic resources (plagiarism is taking the ideas or
writings of others and presenting them as one's own);

9. Not use the school's electronic mail, or other personal email accounts, in any way that causes
recipients or other readers to assume the email message represents the opinion of educators or
other school officials, or anyone else without their explicit permission;

10. Not waste school resources related to the electronic communication system, or damage or
attempt to damage computers, computer systems, computer networks or software;

11. Not abuse the school's electronic communication system by downloading large files or sending
annoying or unnecessary messages to a large number of people;

12. Not gain or attempt to gain unauthorized access to the school's electronic resources, network or
restricted information;

13. Not upload, download or redistribute public domain programs to the system for their own use
without advance permission;

14. Be responsible for determining whether a program is in the public domain and follow the school
virus protection procedures in downloading software.

Disciplinary Actions

The school's electronic resources system is a limited forum, similar to the school newspaper, and
therefore the school may restrict individual user's speech for valid educational reasons. The District
school will not restrict speech on the basis disagreement with the opinions expressed. Users should not
expect privacy in the contents of their personal files or record of web research activities. Routine
maintenance and monitoring of system resources may lead to discovery of violations of District policy,
disciplinary code, or state and federal law. An individual search may also be conducted by the system
administrator if there is reasonable suspicion that a user has violated this Acceptable Use Procedures
agreement. If there is evidence that a violation has occurred the school Principal shall be notified and
will determine appropriate consequences.

Due Process

If any of the conditions of this Acceptable Use Procedures agreement are breached, parents/guardians
will be notified (if student is under 18 years of age) and may be given an opportunity to review the
contents of their child's electronic files. The school will cooperate fully with local, state, or federal
officials in any investigation related to illegal activities conducted through the school's electronic system
or the Internet. In the event there is a claim that an individual user has violated school policy,
procedures or disciplinary code, the user will be provided with written notice and the opportunity to be
heard in the manner set forth by the school disciplinary policy.

Limitation of Liability

The school makes no guarantee that the functions or the services provided by or through the school's
electronic system will be error-free or without defect. The school will not be responsible for any damage
individual users may suffer, including but not limited to, loss of data or interruptions of service. Other
than for student records, the school is not responsible for the accuracy or quality of the information
obtained through or stored on the system.

The school will not be responsible for financial obligations arising through the unauthorized student use
of the system. Parents/guardians of the individual user may be held financially responsible for any harm
to the system as a result of carelessness or intentional misuse. Parent/Guardian Permission



As the parent/guardian of this student, | have read the "Student Acceptable Use Procedures
Agreement." | understand that school access is designed for educational purposes only. The school has
taken precautions in an attempt to eliminate student access to controversial materials. However, | also
recognize it is impossible for the school to restrict access to all controversial materials. Thus, | will not
hold teachers, staff, administrators or the school board responsible for materials acquired on the school
system. Further, | accept full responsibility for supervision if and when my child's electronic resources
use is not in the school setting. | hereby give permission for the school to issue an account for my child
and certify that | have read the Student Acceptable Use Procedures agreement and have signed below
giving my son/daughter permission to access the school's electronic resources.

Student Name {please print):

Parent/Guardian Name (please print):

Address:

Phonet: E-mail Address: Date:

Parent/Guardian Signature:

Student Permission

| have read, understand and agree to abide by the "Student Acceptable Use Procedures Agreement.” |
further understand that any violation of the Procedures may enact school disciplinary action or
constitute a criminal offense. Should | commit any violation, my access privileges may be revoked,
school disciplinary actions may be taken, and/or appropriate legal action may be initiated.

Student's Name (please print):

Student Signature: Date:




FORM: G11-2 (Mandatory)

SAMPLE FORM
Student Acceptable Use Procedures Agreement

Staff Agreement on Use of Technology

| have been given the privilege of using technology owned by the School District in the form of access to
telecommunications and computer hardware and software. | understand that this is a privilege and not
a right of my employment and that | must employ this technology in a manner that complies with the
District's policies.

| understand that the District extends no rights of privacy or ownership to work completed by me on
District-owned technology.

| understand that it is prohibited for me to:

1.

Nowa

Use the District's technology for my personal gain or profit or for any commercial use not
sanctioned by the School District;

Use any software or technology in a manner inconsistent with the District's/school's licensing
agreements;

Distribute any information about any student’s records or files to persons outside the school
system, unless such distribution is authorized by law or there is written permission from the
parent/guardian or student to do so;

Use offensive, obscene or racially demeaning language in any communications;

Download software protected by copyrights; and

Store personal software on any computer owned by the District.

I understand that the School Board may revoke these privileges at any time and that any illegal
activity will be reported to the appropriate authorities.

My signature on this document indicates that | have received and understand the School District's policy
and regulations and that | agree to abide by their terms.

Name (Printed)

Signature:

Date:

cc: Central personnel file
School personnel file



CODE D3
CODE D3 - RESPONSIBLE COMPUTER, NETWORK & INTERNET USE

Purpose

The Grand Isle Supervisory Union and its member School Districts recognize that information
technology (IT) is integral to learning and educating today’s children for success in the global
community and fully supports the access of these electronic resources by students and staff. The
purpose of this policy is to:

a. Create an environment that fosters the use of information technology in a manner that
supports and enriches the curriculum, provides opportunities for collaboration, and
enhances staff professional development.

b. Ensure the district takes appropriate measures to maintain the safety of everyone that
accesses the district’s information technology devices, network and web resources.

c. Comply with the requirements of applicable federal and state laws that regulate the
provision of access to the internet and other electronic resources by school districts.

Policy

It is the policy of the Grand Isle Supervisory Union and its member School Districts to provide
students and staff access to a multitude of information technology (IT) resources including the
Internet. These resources provide opportunities to enhance learning and improve communication
within our community and with the global community beyond. However, with the privilege of
access comes the responsibility of students, teachers, staff and the public to exercise responsible
use of these resources. The use by students, staff or others of district IT resources is a privilege, not
aright.

The same rules and expectations govern student use of IT resources as apply to other student
conduct and communications, including but not limited to the district’s harassment and bullying
policies.

The district’s computer and network resources are the property of the district. Users shall have no
expectation of privacy in anything they create, store, send, receive or display on or over the
district’s computers or network resources, including personal files and electronic communications.

The superintendent is responsible for establishing procedures governing use of IT resources
consistent with the provisions of this policy. These procedures must include:

1. The Principal or their designee will develop annually, a program for educating students
about responsible digital citizenship. As defined in this policy, a responsible digital citizen
is one who:

1. Respects One’s Self. Users will maintain appropriate standards of language and behavior
when sharing information and images on social networking websites and elsewhere online.
Users refrain from distributing personally identifiable information about themselves and
others.

2. Respects Others. Users refrain from using technologies to bully, tease or harass other
people. Users will report incidents of cyber bullying and harassment in accordance with the
district’s policies on bullying and harassment. Users will also refrain from using another
person’s system account or password or from presenting themselves as another person.



3. Protects One’s Self and Others. Users protect themselves and others by reporting abuse
and not forwarding inappropriate materials and communications. They are responsible at
all times for the proper use of their account by not sharing their system account password.

4. Respects Intellectual Property. Users suitably cite any and all use of websites, books,
media, etc.

5. Protects Intellectual Property. Users request to use the software and media others
produce.

2. Provisions necessary to ensure that Internet service provider(s) and other contractors
comply with applicable restrictions on the collection and disclosure of student data and any
other confidential information stored in district electronic resources.

3. Technology protection measures that provide for the monitoring and filtering of online
activities by all users of district IT, including measures that protect against access to content
that is obscene, child pornography, or harmful to minors.

4, Methods to address the following:

a. Control of access by minors to sites on the Internet that include inappropriate
content, such as content that is:

Lewd, vulgar, or profane
Threatening
Harassing or discriminatory
Bullying
Terroristic
Obscene or pornographic
b. The safety and security of minors when using electronic mail, social media sites, and
other forms of direct electronic communications.

s wh e

c. Prevention of unauthorized online access by minors, including “hacking” and other
unlawful activities.

d. Unauthorized disclosure, use, dissemination of personal information regarding
minors.

e. Restriction of minors’ access to materials harmful to them.

5. A process whereby authorized persons may temporarily disable the district’s Internet
filtering measures during use by an adult to enable access for bona fide research or other
lawful purpose.

Policy Application

This policy applies to anyone who accesses the district’s network, collaboration and communication
tools, and/or student information systems either on-site or via a remote location, and anyone who
uses the district’s IT devices either on or off-site.

Limitation/Disclaimer of Liability

The District is not liable for unacceptable use or violations of copyright restrictions or other laws,
user mistakes or negligence, and costs incurred by users. The District is not responsible for
ensuring the accuracy, age appropriateness, or usability of any information found on the District’s
electronic resources network including the Internet. The District is not responsible for any damage
experienced, including, but not limited to, loss of data or interruptions of service. The District is not
responsible for the accuracy or quality of information obtained through or stored on the electronic



resources system including the Internet, or for financial obligations arising through their
unauthorized use.

Enforcement

The District reserves the right to revoke access privileges and/or administer appropriate
disciplinary action for misuse of its IT resources. In the event there is an allegation that a user has
violated this policy, a student will be provided with notice and opportunity to be heard in the
manner set forth in the student disciplinary policy.

Allegations of staff member violations of this policy will be processed in accord with contractual
agreements and legal requirements.

GISU Alburgh CIUUSD South Hero

Date Warned 5/14/2019

Date Adopted

Legal Reference(s): 17 USC §§101-120 (Federal Copyright Act of 1976 as amended)
20USC § 6777 et seq. (Enhancing Education Through Technology Act)
18 USC §2251 (Federal Child Pornography Law—Sexual Exploitation and Other
Abuse of Children)
47 USC §254 (Children’s Internet Protection Act)
47 CFR §54.520 (CIPA Certifications)
13 VSA §62802 et seq. (Obscenity, minors)
13 VSA § 1027 (Disturbing Peace by Use of...Electronic Means)
13 VSA §2605(Voyeurism)




Form D3

SAMPLE FORM
Student Acceptable Use Procedures Agreement

General Procedures

Students in the <School> District have access to the school's electronic resources for the purpose of
enhancing learning. To gain access to these resources, all students under the age of 18 must obtain
parental permission and must sign and return this form to the person designated. Students 18 and over
may sign their own forms.

Students may access the school's electronic resources for educational purposes only. Acceptable use
includes classroom activities, career development, and curriculum driven research and may involve
electronic communication, as designated by the school. The school's electronic resources shall not be
used for commercial or entertainment purposes, as a public access service or a public forum, unless
permission is allowed by the school. Students are expected to follow the rules of personal conduct
outlined in the student handbook, as well as abide by state and federal laws in the use of the school's
electronic resources.

Parents/guardians are warned that some material accessible via the Internet, through the school's
electronic resources, may contain items that are illegal, defamatory, inaccurate or potentially offensive
o some people. While it is the school's intent to provide appropriate electronic resources to enhance
the curriculum, students may find ways to access other materials as well. The District believes the
benefits to students from access to electronic resources and the Internet for information gathering,
research and to provide opportunities for collaboration, exceed the potential disadvantages. Ultimately,
parents/guardians of minors are responsible for setting and conveying the standards that their children
should follow when using electronic resources. To that end, we support and respect each family's right
to decide whether or not to apply for access.

Individual User Responsibilities
System users shall:

1. Understand that electronic mail transmissions and other use of the electronic communication
system is not confidential and may be monitored at any time by designated staff to ensure
appropriate use;

2. Not distribute personally identifiable information about themselves or others by means of the
school's electronic communication system;

3. Beresponsible at all times for the proper use of their account by taking all reasonable
precautions to prevent others from gaining access to their system account and password;

4. Not use another person's system account or password, or present themselves another person,
without written permission from the system administrator or school coordinator;

5. Not purposefully access or send materials, which include pictures, video or audio files, that are
rude, disrespectful, abusive, obscene, sexually oriented, threatening, harassing, damaging to
another's reputation, or illegal;

6. Purge electronic mail in accordance with established school e-mail retention guidelines;

7. Not use the school's electronic resources and internet connection for commercial or illegal
purposes, or for any other activity prohibited by school policy; not redistribute copyrighted



programs or data except with the written permission of the copyright holder or designee. Such
permission must be specified in the document or must be obtained directly from the copyright
holder or designee in accordance with applicable copyright laws, school policy, and
administrative regulations;

8. Not plagiarize work using the school's electronic resources (plagiarism is taking the ideas or
writings of others and presenting them as one's own);

9. Not use the school's electronic mail, or other personal email accounts, in any way that causes
recipients or other readers to assume the email message represents the opinion of educators or
other school officials, or anyone else without their explicit permission;

10. Not waste school resources related to the electronic communication system, or damage or
attempt to damage computers, computer systems, computer networks or software;

11. Not abuse the school's electronic communication system by downloading large files or sending
annoying or unnecessary messages to a large number of people;

12. Not gain or attempt to gain unauthorized access to the school's electronic resources, network or
restricted information;

13. Not upload, download or redistribute public domain programs to the system for their own use
without advance permission;

14. Be responsible for determining whether a program is in the public domain and follow the school
virus protection procedures in downloading software.

Disciplinary Actions

The school's electronic resources system is a limited forum, similar to the school newspaper, and
therefore the school may restrict individual user's speech for valid educational reasons. The District
school will not restrict speech on the basis disagreement with the opinions expressed. Users should not
expect privacy in the contents of their personal files or record of web research activities. Routine
maintenance and monitoring of system resources may lead to discovery of violations of District policy,
disciplinary code, or state and federal law. An individual search may also be conducted by the system
administrator if there is reasonable suspicion that a user has violated this Acceptable Use Procedures
agreement. If there is evidence that a violation has occurred the school Principal shall be notified and
will determine appropriate consequences.

Due Process

If any of the conditions of this Acceptable Use Procedures agreement are breached, parents/guardians
will be notified (if student is under 18 years of age) and may be given an opportunity to review the
contents of their child's electronic files. The school will cooperate fully with local, state, or federal
officials in any investigation related to illegal activities conducted through the school's electronic system
or the Internet. In the event there is a claim that an individual user has violated school policy,
procedures or disciplinary code, the user will be provided with written notice and the opportunity to be
heard in the manner set forth by the school disciplinary policy. '

Limitation of Liability

The school makes no guarantee that the functions or the services provided by or through the school's
electronic system will be error-free or without defect. The school will not be responsible for any damage
individual users may suffer, including but not limited to, loss of data or interruptions of service. Other
than for student records, the school is not responsible for the accuracy or quality of the information
obtained through or stored on the system.



The school will not be responsible for financial obligations arising through the unauthorized student use
of the system. Parents/guardians of the individual user may be held financially responsible for any harm
to the system as a result of carelessness or intentional misuse. Parent/Guardian Permission

As the parent/guardian of this student, | have read the "Student Acceptable Use Procedures
Agreement." | understand that school access is designed for educational purposes only. The school has
taken precautions in an attempt to eliminate student access to controversial materials. However, | also
recognize it is impossible for the school to restrict access to all controversial materials. Thus, | will not
hold teachers, staff, administrators or the school board responsible for materials acquired on the school
system. Further, | accept full responsibility for supervision if and when my child's electronic resources
use is not in the school setting. | hereby give permission for the school to issue an account for my child
and certify that | have read the Student Acceptable Use Procedures agreement and have signed below
giving my son/daughter permission to access the school's electronic resources.

Student Name (please print):

Parent/Guardian Name (please print):

Address:

Phonett: E-mail Address: Date:

Parent/Guardian Signature:

Student Permission

| have read, understand and agree to abide by the "Student Acceptable Use Procedures Agreement." |
further understand that any violation of the Procedures may enact school disciplinary action or
constitute a criminal offense. Should | commit any violation, my access privileges may be revoked,
school disciplinary actions may be taken, and/or appropriate legal action may be initiated.

Student's Name (please print):

Student Signature: Date:




FORM: D3-2

SAMPLE FORM
Student Acceptable Use Procedures Agreement

Staff Agreement on Use of Technology

I have been given the privilege of using technology owned by the <School> District in the form of access
to telecommunications and computer hardware and software. | understand that this is a privilege and
not a right of my employment and that | must employ this technology in a manner that complies with
the District's policies.

| understand that the District extends no rights of privacy or ownership to work completed by me on
District-owned technology.

[ understand that it is prohibited for me to:

1.

No vk

Use the District's technology for my personal gain or profit or for any commercial use not
sanctioned by the School District;

Use any software or technology in a manner inconsistent with the District's/school's licensing
agreements;

Distribute any information about any student's records or files to persons outside the school
system, unless such distribution is authorized by law or there is written permission from the
parent/guardian or student to do so;

Use offensive, obscene or racially demeaning language in any communications;

Download software protected by copyrights; and

Store personal software on any computer owned by the District.

| understand that the School Board may revoke these privileges at any time and that any illegal
activity will be reported to the appropriate authorities.

My signature on this document indicates that t have received and understand the School District's policy
and regulations and that | agree to abide by their terms.

Name (Printed)

Signature:

Date:

cc: Central personnel file
School personnel file



Code G13 (Mandatory)
CODE G13 - TITLE I COMPARABILITY POLICY

If a school in the Grand Isle Supervisory Union becomes eligible to receive Title I funds, the school
district in which the school is located shall provide comparable services, staffing levels, curriculum
materials and instructional supplies for Title I eligible and non-title I eligible schools. The district
shall use local and state funds to ensure equivalence among schools in staffing and the provision of
curricular materials and instructional supplies. Students in all schools shall be eligible for
comparable programs and supplemental supports. The district shall utilize district-wide salary
schedules for professional and non-professional staff.

The superintendent or his or her designee shall develop procedures for compliance with this policy
and shall maintain records that are updated biennially documenting the district's compliance with
this policy.

Date Warned: 9/6/15,10/8/15
Date Adopted: 10/20/15
Date Last Reviewed:
Legal Reference: 20USC §6321 (c).
20 USC 7801 (26) (LEA defined)
16 VSA 144



CODE D4 - TITLE I COMPARABILITY POLICY

Code D4

If a member school district within the Grand Isle Supervisory Union becomes eligible to receive
Title I funds, the school district in which the school is located shall provide comparable services,
staffing levels, curriculum materials and instructional supplies for Title I eligible and non-title I
eligible schools. The district shall use local and state funds to ensure equivalence among schools in
staffing and the provision of curricular materials and instructional supplies. Students in all schools
shall be eligible for comparable programs and supplemental supports. The district shall utilize

district-wide salary schedules for professional and non-professional staff.

The superintendent or his or her designee shall develop procedures for compliance with this policy
and shall maintain records that are updated biennially documenting the district's compliance with

this policy.

GISU

Alburgh

CIUUSD

South Hero

Date Warned

5/14/2019

Date Adopted

Date Last Reviewed:
Legal Reference: 20 USC §6321 (c).

20 USC 7801 (26) (LEA defined)

16 VSA 144




CODE G14 (Mandatory)

CODE G14 - ANIMAL DISSECTION
Policy

It is the intent of the Grand Isle Supervisory Union and its member School Districts to comply with
the requirements of Act 154 of 2008 regarding the right of students to be excused from
participating in or observing activities involving the dissection or vivisection of animals. Students
shall have the right to be excused from participating in any lesson, exercise or assessment requiring
the student to dissect, vivisect or otherwise harm or destroy an animal or any part of an animal, or
to observe any of these activities, as part of a course of instruction.

Definition

As used in this policy, the word “animal” means any organism of the kingdom animalia and includes
an animal’s cadaver or the severed parts of an animal’s cadaver.

Alternative Education Method

A student who is excused under this policy shall be provided with alternative methods through
which he or she can learn and be assessed on material required by the course. The alternative
methods shall be developed by the teacher of the course, in consultation with the principal if
necessary.

Discrimination

No student shall be discriminated against based on his or her decision to exercise the right to be
excused afforded by this policy.

Procedures

The Principal shall develop and implement procedures to ensure compliance with the provisions of
Act 154 of 2008. The procedures shall include provisions for the timely notification to each student
enrolled in the course and to the student’s parent or guardian of the student’s right to be excused
from participating in or observing the lesson and the process by which a student may exercise this
right.

Date Warned: 9/6/15,10/8/15
Date Adopted: 10/20/15



CODE D5

CODE D5 - ANIMAL DISSECTION
Policy

It is the intent of the Grand Isle Supervisory Union and its member School Districts to comply with
the requirements of Act 154 of 2008 regarding the right of students to be excused from
participating in or observing activities involving the dissection or vivisection of animals. Students
shall have the right to be excused from participating in any lesson, exercise or assessment requiring
the student to dissect, vivisect or otherwise harm or destroy an animal or any part of an animal, or
to observe any of these activities, as part of a course of instruction.

Definition

As used in this policy, the word “animal” means any organism of the kingdom animalia and includes
an animal’s cadaver or the severed parts of an animal’s cadaver.

Alternative Education Method

A student who is excused under this policy shall be provided with alternative methods through
which he or she can learn and be assessed on material required by the course. The alternative
methods shall be developed by the teacher of the course, in consultation with the principal if
necessary.

Discrimination

No student shall be discriminated against based on his or her decision to exercise the right to be
excused afforded by this policy.

Procedures

The Principal shall develop and implement procedures to ensure compliance with the provisions of
Act 154 of 2008. The procedures shall include provisions for the timely notification to each student
enrolled in the course and to the student’s parent or guardian of the student’s right to be excused
from participating in or observing the lesson and the process by which a student may exercise this
right.

GISU Alburgh CIUUSD South Hero

Date Warned 5/14/2019

Date Adopted




CODE H7
CODE H7 - TITLE [, PART A PARENTAL INVOLVEMENT POLICY

The Grand Isle Supervisory Union maintains programs, activities, and procedures for the
involvement of parents of students receiving services, or enrolled in programs, under Title ] Part A
of Elementary and Secondary Education Act. These programs, activities and procedures are
described in school district and school level compacts.

Definition

Parent: Includes a legal guardian or other person standing in loco parentis (such as a
grandparent or stepparent with whom the child lives, or a person who is legally responsible
for the child’s welfare).

School District Parental Involvement Compact

The superintendent or his or her designee shall develop an LEA-Level Parental Involvement
Compact according to Title I, Part A requirements. The LEA Compact shall include: (1) the school
district’s expectations for parental involvement, (2) specific strategies for effective parent
involvement activities to improve student academic achievement and school performance, and (3)
other provisions required by law. The superintendent or designee shall ensure that the Compact is
distributed to parents of students receiving services, or enrolled in programs, under Title I Part A.

School Level Parental Involvement Compact

Each building principal or his or her designee shall develop a School-Level Parental Involvement
Compact in accord with Title I, Part A requirements. The School Level Parental Involvement
Compact shall include: (1) a process for continually involving parents in its development and
implementation, (2) how parents, the entire school staff and students share the responsibility for
improved academic achievement, (3) the means by which the school and parents build and develop
a partnership to help students achieve the State’s standards, and (4) other provisions as required
by law. Each principal or designee shall ensure that the compact is distributed to parents of
students receiving services, or enrolled in programs under Title I, Part A.

Date Warned: 9/6/15,10/8/15

Date Adopted: 10/20/15

Date Last Reviewed:

Legal Reference(s): 20 USC§6318 Title I, Part A of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act
(“No Child Left Behind Act”)

16 VSA §144b Definition of “LEA” for NCLBA purposes.



CODEE1
CODE E1 - TITLE I, PART A PARENTAL INVOLVEMENT POLICY

The Grand Isle Supervisory Union and its member districts maintain programs, activities, and
procedures for the involvement of parents of students receiving services, or enrolled in programs,
under Title I Part A of Elementary and Secondary Education Act. These programs, activities and
procedures are described in school district and school level compacts.

Definition

Parent: Includes a legal guardian or other person standing in loco parentis (such as a
grandparent or stepparent with whom the child lives, or a person who is legally responsible
for the child’s welfare).

School District Parental Involvement Compact

The Superintendent or his or her designee shall develop an LEA-Level Parental Involvement
Compact according to Title I, Part A requirements. The LEA Compact shall include: (1) the school
district’s expectations for parental involvement, (2) specific strategies for effective parent
involvement activities to improve student academic achievement and school performance, and (3)
other provisions required by law. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the Compact is
distributed to parents of students receiving services, or enrolled in programs, under Title I Part A.

School Level Parental Involvement Compact

Each building principal or his or her designee shall develop a School-Level Parental Involvement
Compact in accord with Title I, Part A requirements. The School Level Parental Involvement
Compact shall include: (1) a process for continually involving parents in its development and
implementation, (2) how parents, the entire school staff and students share the responsibility for
improved academic achievement, (3) the means by which the school and parents build and develop
a partnership to help students achieve the State’s standards, and (4) other provisions as required
by law. Each principal or designee shall ensure that the compact is distributed to parents of
students receiving services, or enrolled in programs under Title I, Part A.

GISU Alburgh CIUUSD South Hero

Date Warned 5/14/2019

Date Adopted

Date Last Reviewed:
Legal Reference(s): 20 USC§6318 Title I, Part A of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act
(“No Child Left Behind Act”)

16 VSA §144b Definition of “LEA” for NCLBA purposes.



CODE F17 (Mandatory)
CODE F17 - HEAD LICE

(Revised February, 2005 in accord with Vermont Department of Health Recommendations)

Policy

The psychological, social and economical impact of head lice infestations can create a problem in
the community. Recognizing that a sizeable number of cases exist from time to time, the Grand Isle
Supervisory Union (GISU) will take the necessary measures to reduce the loss of instructional time
for students. This policy is based on current recommendations by the Vermont Department of
Health and other public health organizations.

Prevention strategies are an important part of controlling the spread of head lice. The
Superintendent (Principal), using public health resources when necessary, will develop a plan
detailing a system-wide approach to preventing and controlling the spread of a head lice
infestation. The plan will include the following:

a. Identify partners who will need to collaborate such as parents and children, school
nurses and other school personnel, child care providers, local physicians, town
health officers, public health staff, community health clinic staff, community
volunteers and other community and business members (e.g. dry cleaners,
laundromats, pharmacies).

b. Provide in-service education for all staff with emphasis on diagnosis, mode of
transmission, treatment, and control plans.

c. Prepare educational materials which will be distributed at least annually at the
beginning of each school year to parents and students as well as immediately
following any outbreak at school.

d. Institute school and classroom practices that include

1.
2.
3.

Assign individual hooks for student belongings.
Have students keep their hats inside their coat sleeves.

Permanently assign resting mats, towels or pillows and keep separate while
in use or in storage.

Discourage sharing of combs, brushes or hair ornaments.

Limit the transporting of personal toys such as stuffed animals from home to
school.

Managing Head Lice Cases

1. Any staff member who suspects head lice will report this immediately to the school nurse or

Principal.

2. Any student identified by the school nurse (or qualified designee) as having lice will be sent
home as soon as possible for treatment. Students with untreated nits shall be discouraged
from close contact with others and will be sent home at the end of the school day.

3. Verbal and written instructions for treatment will be given to the family of each identified
student. The instructions shall include a suggestion that the parent or- guardian of the
student contact the child's physician or other pediatric health care provider. Instructions
shall also include recommendations for treatment that are consistent with Vermont



Departments of Health and Education guidelines and that the student may return to school
after proper treatment. The school nurse or other trained personnel will examine all
children in the same classroom with an identified active case (untreated nits or actual lice)
and handle appropriately.

4. Students will be readmitted to school after the first treatment with a written or verbal
confirmation from the parent or guardian that the initial treatment has been completed. In
accord with Department of Health recommendations, students will not be excluded from
school on the sole grounds that nits may be present despite appropriate treatment.

5. Eachre-entering student will be examined by trained personnel to look for evidence that
the treatment was performed. If evidence is lacking, the student will be sent home as soon
as possible for treatment.

6. If the number of cases is considered to constitute an outbreak, administrative personnel will
institute the outbreak procedures that accompany this policy. An outbreak is considered to
have occurred when head lice infestation occurs in 2-3 students in the same classroom or
when 10% of the individuals in a classroom, school, or child care facility have evidence of
infestation.

7. The school nurse will provide additional in-service education as needed for staff with
emphasis on diagnosis, treatment and control plans.

8. The school nurse will initiate educational programs for students as necessary.

Date Warned: 11/20/06,12/4/06,1/15/07, 11/5/07

Date Adopted: 1/15/07,11/5/07

Legal References: VT State Board of Education Manual of Rules & Practices, §2120.8.1.3.3
VT School Health Services Manual: Standards of Practice, Appendix 29-A-1

through 29-A-8

Cross Reference:



CODEF17-R

CODE F17R - PROCEDURES FOR MANAGING A HEAD LICE OUTBREAK

10.

Send home for treatment, as soon as possible, any individuals with evidence of
live lice,

2. Check all heads in affected classrooms daily, by the school nurse (or qualified
designee), until all evidence is eliminated.

Vacuum carpeted classrooms daily during outbreak.

Discontinue temporarily "dress-up" activities and other activities that involve
close person-to-person contact.

Do not spray with pesticides.

Encourage families to contact health care providers if they suspect treatment
has failed.

Siblings and close personal contacts should be examined, and if infected, should
be instructed on treatment.

Send general fact sheet and a notice of the outbreak home to all parents. Elicit
help of all parents to check for head lice daily.

Encourage parents to notify the school, childcare provider, and other close
personal contacts when head lice have been identified.

(The Vermont Department of Health, the American Academy of Pediatrics and
the National Association of School Nurses discourage the implementation of a
"no nit" policy, and recommend that children be readmitted to school after
proper treatment despite the possible presence of nits.)



GRAND ISLE
SUPERVISORY UNION

Ea-fc:,« person. Ew‘l}l inferaction. Z’w:y da .

Grand Isle Supervisory Union
Procedure for Head Lice

1. Any staff member who suspects head lice shall report to his/her school nurse
and/or health assistant.

2, The school nurse and/or health assistant shall confirm the presence of head lice.
If confirmed, hair is tied up, close contact is discouraged and student is sent back to
class. The parent/guardian is contacted during the school day.

3. Information is given to the parent/guardian by phone or in person regarding the
appropriate treatment of head lice. Include the Head Lice Information Sheet. All family
members, siblings and adults as well as any other close contacts should be checked.
Family is encouraged to contact anyone that may be at risk.

4. Parents/guardians are encouraged to let the school health office know verbally or
in writing the treatment steps that were initiated.

5. The school health office will inspect the child as discreetly as possible,
maintaining confidentiality. If more than 2-3 cases are confirmed in the same class, a
letter will be sent home to the entire class alerting families.

6. The school health office will maintain communication with the families and offer
assistance in carrying out the appropriate treatment recommendations. The most recent
research indicates that daily combing with a good metal lice comb for 2 weeks until all
evidence of head lice is gone is the key step in its elimination.

7. The Vermont Department of Health, American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP) and
the National Association of School Nurses (NASN) have discontinued the “no-nit”
policies and recommend that children be readmitted to school after proper treatment
despite the possible presence of nits.

ED May 2019

Emily Dousevicz, RN
Grand Isle Supervisory Union

District School Nurse



O\xl T
’ ? GRAND ISLE

SUPERVISORY UNION

N
- P . Lo
ICE \)\'s ::5'11:74 /)tr;an‘ J:wry inferaction. zwry t/ny

May 9, 2019
Dear Parent/Guardian,
This is to inform you of a case of head lice in your child’s classroom.

The Vermont Department of Health and the American Academy of Pediatrics consider lice to be
a nuisance condition, not a health hazard. Lice are small wingless, crawling insects that live on
the human head and scalp. Lice do not jump or fly and are most often spread by head to head
contact. Lice cannot survive more than 24 hours without a host. The following web sites have
additional information about head lice:

https://www.healthychildren.org/English/health-issues/conditions/from-insects-
animals/Pages/Signs-of-Lice.aspx

Please check your child’s head for the next week or two. It is best to inspect the child’s head in a
bright, sunny location or with a light directly on the scalp. Lice can be difficult to find but
typically are located behind the ears and the nape of the neck. The eggs (nits) are small pearly
shaped and firmly attached to the individual hairs. If your child has head lice, you may notice
him/her scratching the head often, or a rash on the back of the neck. If you suspect that your
child may have head lice, or you have any questions, please call Julie Elkins at 372-6913, ext.
106..

Here are some helpful hints to help prevent the spread of head lice;
o If your child has long hair, pull the hair back in a braid or ponytail, every day.
e Remind your child not to share hats or headbands with other children.
* Remind your child to store hats and face warmers in the sleeve of his/her jacket
or backpack.

Sincerely,

Emily Dousevicz, RN
Grand Isle SU District Nurse



